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REPORT OF INVES'IIGATION

UNITED STATES SECURITI;ES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION ’
. ‘OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL '

Case No. 0I1G-496

Allegations of ‘Conflict of Interest, Improper Use of Non-Puhlu: Infdrmatmn
and Fallure to Take Sufﬁclent Acﬁon Agamst Fraudulent C'ompany

_ ntroductxon ang Summarv of Resu-lts of Investl ration

On Jily 10, 2008, the Sepurmes and Exchange Commxssum (“SECT or “Cqmzmsmon”)
Office of Inspector General (“OIG7) opened an investigation after SEC Chairman Chidstopher
+ Cox’s former Chief of Staff asked the OIG io. review allegations apainst a former Dwisxom of .
Enforcement (“Eniforcement®) attotriey: The allegations weie outlined in = Wall, StreetJaumal
article about hedge fund Greenlight: C‘apltal LLC (“Greenlight Capjtal”) mariager David
Eihoim’s (“Einhomn™) then soon-to-be released book, Foolmg Some af Ihe Peoyie All qf the

Time - - 4 Long Short Storv(“Einhom’s book™). The Einhpm®s .
I
aggressively qumgon d Einhorii about his short-selling of Allied Capital Gorporation (*“Allied”)
stock, became a registere or Allied affer he left the SEC. It addition, the article yoted _
that Allied obtained puirlomed copies of Binhorn’s telephone records. The former Chisf of Staff -~
‘was concemed, inter alia, thai " dy hiave engaged in illegal actWIty ahd tiken Ron-

pubhc SEC investigatory material§, including inhorn’s telephone records. e

o I 2008, the. QIG copducted abrief prelmnnary inquiry info snmdarall ations onﬂmed
- inaletter fom Einhorn’s:counsel, Richard Zabel (“Zabel”), to the OIG.". The 2005 inquizy

(b)(7)(C)

! That lewer alleged thai puay have been: (11O
Commission’s investjgation-of Z 1ed, whlch ZabEl claime
(2) usmg toAlhed’s advantage nons-u formation: abouf E

mthlgatwn of Alhed Zabel attached i

forAlhed. Zabel zlalmed that

Congt&ssrcgardmgthe
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afo rcemcnt mvesngatmn into Allied was opgnedaﬁe OO

Lommission but that there was no specific violation.of any Iaw; rale,
After reviewing the information provided ia 2008 by then
Ck ; the. copened the issues in that inquiry and broadened its investigationi o
include. addxtmna] allegatmns Einhorn made in his book. Published in mid-2008, Binhorn?s book
recatinted the muchi-publicized heated feud between Einhorn and Allied, which continues today:.
The feud began in May 2002 when Eitihorn gave a negahve speech ata.conference-about Alhed
and described why Greenlight Capital had a shert posxtton in Allied. Einhorn’s speech

found that

" . compelled many to also-short and sell Allied”s stock the next. day. - Allied. mponded, according

to Einhorn, in a “Washington, D.C.-style spin job,” attacking, Emhom '

Einhorn’s book included allegations of the SEC’s failure to take apprapriate action,
related to Allied’s wrongdofng. Einliomn wiote that e senit-about a dozen Teticrs with defailed
iiformation-and evideiice related to his allegations o6f wrongdoing at Allied to several SEC -
officials, but never received a telephone call or written.tesponse. Einhorn stated that he did not

have:any idea whether anyoneat the SEC followed: upon the information he promded. Tn those €

letters, and in his book, Einhorn claimed that Allied overvilued many of its investments. -
Einhorn also stated-that he believed he was investigated by the SEC at the behest of Allied, -
noting the:unusual timing of receiving a subpoens for his testimony and documents after -
Enfomemcnt attorneys called hxm the-same day-he. asked Allied a question. on a conference calL :

: The-OIG conducted a comprehensive mvesugatxon of the allegations in Einhorn®s book.
The investigation revealad that Allied suecessfully lobbied the S8EC to begin investigafing .
Einhorn and his: hedge furid Greenlight Capital without speeific.evidence of° ‘wirongdoing, after
Eirhorn’s fiegative speech about Allied § in May 2002 The OIG investigation found that

Enforcement’s investigation of Einhorn and his hedee fund. 2 mong otherhedgeﬁmdsmctﬁdmg -
‘(bx?)(m B)E) » ' was commenced shortly after .
ANEd met w prcethent nifcials in_Tohg 2002, 1hH .jvesnganonwas
:supemsedb(wac) -whio just o "["‘Eﬂ f the Commis:
“became 4 /~Tfor Allled, We Tamid that duting thed ®(V(©.0)1® mVestxgatm L

- aggressively qucsnoned Einhorii intestimony, subpocnsed several bokes of dociimentss
sought Eintiorn’s telephone records-and list of his clients. We also found thai Q)

numetous, successful efforts to learn about' Adlied during the course of tﬂ# ®OOHE ' .

mvesugatxon. -
: The OIG mVestlgatmn ﬁxrther :emledthatdunng the: sametxmeAlhedwasablew
- conviiice the SEC to-investipite Eitiiors, even withoilt ity evidence-of wrongdoing, Einhort

- ‘was submitting specific and detailed lefters to.the SEC outlininig evidénce of Allied’s overvalued:
investmenits and requesting the SEC to investigate Allied. .\ We found that although the SEC’s
 Officeof Compliance Inspections and Examinations (“OCIE”) ‘had bcgun an:examination of

2
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Allied based upon Binkioni’s allegutions, Bnfotcemment staff was unaware: fhat QCIEwas
examining Allied-and the lead Enforoement attormey was prevented fiom. contacting 2 Senior
‘Official t6 ledrn that Einhorn begait submitting letters ountlining evidence:of Allied’s
virongdoing. ‘ B : ‘ A

The OIG investigation also fouad that very soon after Enforcement began looking dtihie + -
allegations against Einhom, they conclnded that there wasno credible evidence to demonstrate
that-the activitiés of his hedge fimd violated any federal securiies laws; However; althoughihe. -
investigation against Einbom was as-a practical matter completed by mid-2003, the investigation
Wwas-not formally closed until December 2006:4nd Eirihom was aevernatified that hewas zio
longer a subject of investipation despite his request Tor such notification. . '

. (B/gehet found that in 2003, while supesvisiag the investgatiory against o and
others, vas asked to [eave Enforcemient because of ne ormance problems. In _

OIG investigation disclosed tha Commission’s Ediics .
ister a5 4 PO oor ATeA based on:representations bie made that he had riot
ied-Telated matters while working at thie SEC. 'In fact, the evidence showed
that arked o the investigation of Einhom which Allied had lobbied for, and in
the course of this investigation, ledrried 2 substaritial aimournt of sensitive, Tioii-niiblic inforsiation
regarding Einhoin and Allicd. However, the OIG found 6, eviderice that ook any oi-
blic: ar cace.related documents with hini when he Iéft the SEC. Nor did"we obtain evidercs
réceived any non-public information from-any SEC employee after leaving the

~ The OIG investigation revedled that in March 2005, Einhoin raised concerns that Allied  ~
informed the SEC and Utited States Atiorney’s Office (USAG”) that® " fiad engagedin. _
the offense ofpreterxn}ﬁﬁ(iinpe;so‘ rsondting Somédiie to obtain their telephione Tecords) against .
Einhiven oo behalf of Allied. Alfied then filed an SEC Fortn “10-Q” acknowlédging that 6ne of
s agents had {llegally obtained Einhor’s telephone records; alfhongh it &laimed not to have
-authorized the pretexting. The DIG found that the SEC fook no action apainst Allied related to *
the pretexting. ' - .. . oo

Moreovet, although Enforcement found no evidence of wrongdoing against Eintorn.
 based upon Allied’s unsupported allegations; Einhorn®s ¢lairtis against Allied were validated to a
greatextent by OCIE’s examination. However, the record shows that OCIE’s examiitation,
prolonged by delays, was nnusual in suany ways. Specifically, it was conducted priiiarily by |
only one headquarters” exairinet with very close: supervision by the Associate Dircctor i OCIE.
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In.addition, although: the eXam lasted fox 18 monthss thex:e was; no vtsxt 10 Allied’s offi ces, even

hait thie: Associate Director
examn ‘who faxmerly worked at

the SEC and mdxcated that he tmstec g‘ﬂnd bad the view that anyone who had worked at’the

- SBEC was “not going to bedoing; anytmng illegal:™

'thcugh thﬁy were focated j ,‘

“The examiner on the Alhed examination testified that shemoexved consxderable
. “pushback” from the Associate Director with regard.to het ﬁndmgs against Allied.- Spemﬁcally,
. the éxaminer expressed concems.about the meithot] that Ailied utilized to raise cash to pay
dividends, noting that Allied had not had sufficient cash ﬁ'om earnings to pay dividends since.

" 1999, without the i issuance of additional stok. “The examinter was concerned that the manveer in

which Allied was firiancing its dividends was akin to.a “Ponzi scheme.” Moreover, all of the
wotk papers froin that examiination wete later inexplicably deleted from the OCIE shared:
computer diive.

In Apnl 2004, the record shows that OCIE referred thrée. fmdmgs From its-exatriination of
Allied to: Enforcement, including the: concern about how Allied financed its- dividenids with
which the Associate Director disagreed. The OIG determined that the issue of how Allied
financed its dividends was never investigated by Enforcement. In May 2004, Enforcenient’ :
finally began its investigation.of the clainis raised by Einhorr in May and June 2002. We found -
that Enforcement detenmined by mid-2006 that more than 4 dozen of Alfied’s investments had
significant problems with the calculation of their vatue and that Allied had materxally ov;amtated
its net book income on SEC.Forms “IO—K” for several years.

However, after i mvest\gatmg the matter for three years, in June 2007 Just after- Allied told
the SEC its.agent engaged in pretexting, the Commission entered intoa seitlement. agreement

- with Allied, Inthat agreement, Allied agreed to continue to.employ a Chief VaIUaubn Officerto

oversee its quatterly valuation process and third-party valuation consultants to assistin its -
quarterly valuation process for two years. No penalty Wwas asséssed against Allied or atiy of its |
- officers or diréctors. The OIG investigation fuither disclosed that Allied"s counsel had Fedquested

. -and obtained a “pre-Wells™ mesting with anopcementm which & former SEC Enforceinent

Directar, and otlicr atiomeys representing Alli ~succwsihﬂyiabbwdEnfomementnottobmg
frand oharges against Alliedor®?©  |uhio Euforoement found to have
- -overvalaed some of Allied’s investhients; but instead ""veAlhedacoapxa‘?:odksand

records™ chaige. 'Weé furthier found that under the setﬂement with Allied thiere Wéie iio-efforts »
made by the. Commission, or even pmvxslons m the settlement order, o mamtor compilanec by
Allied with that agreement. _ .

 Finally, we found that after the OIG init 'amd. d its investigation and Binkim’s bo
published about his experiences with Allied-and the SEC,

Sl W Mo -
s
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(b)®)

In all, the OIG’s findings during this mVestxgatxon r4isé coiicerns, abiut how décisions
were made within the SEC with regard to the initiating-and conclndmg of the-examination:and
investigations. While we did not find any-evidence of specific wronigdoing:on, the part of current:
SEC employees, we found that serious and. credible allegations against Allied were not initially
mvwhgated, and instead Allied was, able to suocessﬁllly lobbythe SEC to look i mto alleganons
agamst its rival Eintiorn without any specific evitlence of wrongdping, - -

W also found that there-was a lack of comimunication bétweetr OCIE and Enforcement -
with respect to'pending examinations and investigstions. Moreaver, a foriner Enforcetiierit
nianager (who had such significant performance pmblemshe was asked to leave Enforcemint).
was able to obtain a significan Al smaun t of sensitive information he may have disclosed to Allied
when he became a reglstcred or Allied a year after leaving the SEC. Further, we found
concerns with both the OGIE exammation of Allied and the, resulting Enforcement investigation,
and believe there are quiestions about the exient fo which Allied’s'SEC conngctions and

| aggressive tactics may have influsnced Enforoement s and OCIR's decisions inthese mattexs

We are :ecommendmg thist the Ditectors of OCIE aiid Enforcenient carefully teview ﬂus
report-ofi mvesugauon andhe: lnstory of the-exaninstion and invesfigations that are-degoribed in ‘_

~ this report and ‘give consideration to promuigatmg and/or elarifying proaedures with régard to:

(.1) how examinations and mvesttgatmns are initiated ‘where there are requests
from outside persons or entities, including whether specific allegations of
wrongdomg have been provided, it determining whether to commience an
examination. m' mvestlgatton,

{2 mformmg mdmduals and entities under investigation that they-are 1o -
. Ionger subjects of an mvesugauon ma tnnely manne:,asrsqmred by the -
: Enfomemznt ‘Masusl;

G ,ensunngthatotherthan&admanal Wels meetings arcot uilized by
: aggmstve isounselto mﬂuence declsmnsinEnfercement actrons; o

@) incorporating provisions in anoreement settlement agreements that
, .¢hsure neqmrements are adequately momtored for comphangc

(5) . limiting the ability of OCIE. pexsonnel o deletc exa.tmmt:on work papers
ﬁum QCIE coniputersystems .
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{6) ensiiring that OCIE inansgenient is not uriduly infliienced bythe presence.
- of foumer SEC employees in examinations and that all issucs identified as

potential federal securities law violations be caraﬁzlly considered for -
referral to Enforcement; and _

') &Qeimn‘enﬁng;the msonsspeclﬂclssm mfened{to Enforcement from -
‘OCIE are niot investigated. :

. Wealso recommendthat the Ethies Office consider methods t0-ensre that’the:e isno |
‘appearatice of i impropriety where formet SEC staff attorneys represent a conipany shortly after
their work at-the SEC provided them with specific and sensitive mfonnatwn related to that

company-

Stope of Investi “'tion

. TheOIG obtained aiid reviewed voluntinous documents related to ‘this matfer; including
staff esmiails, work papers from an O .IE examiration of Allied, and Enforcement docurnents

related 1o both the

B0, (b)(a)

el Alhedmvesugatxons.

The OIG took: swom, on-the-récord testxmbny oft.

(1-)

@
@

@

By
. RO
© 2009);

6)

RC
®

BITIC) } Staff Accountant, Office.of Compllance Inspecnons and
Exammanons (February 11, 2009);

former OCIE exammer -and Branch Chief (July 20; 2009),

(BX7)(C)

Be J.orCounsel,Dmswn ofEnforeement (July 21, 2009); .

®XNE) Senior Counsel, Division ofEnfowement {July 30, 2009); -

Assxstant Director; Division of Enﬁzixcement (Aug-ust 71,

soviate Ditoctor, Office of Comphance Inspections and -

Exasirations (Aﬁgust 24, 2609); and

!

David Einhors, founder and co-President of Greenlight Capital (Match 9, 2009);
- [(BXTNC) .

QU Asmmate Counsel Dmswn of Enforcement (August ll 2009)1
- BN -

. :«{‘i'x-.
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()  Unidentified Scmor Ofﬁcial, Division of Investment Managﬁment (September i1,

2009).
The OIG also conduicted on-the-tecord in,tervievys-eﬁ
C @ [P Philadelphia Regfotial Offce Branch Chief (Joly 24, 2009); and
@ [PNO Senior Ad;fisor to Diir_ectof, Divi'sion of Investment Management

2 OIG conducted several telephatie mtervxcws of formcr Entbrcemmt attom&y
ho refused to.appeat for OIG ; mnmony

i

asi
Ere
o "amn,

BXTIC) @™

®X7)(C) [

The Cipmxmsswn‘s Regulatton Conperning Conduct of Mentbers and Fng layees and
Former Membersand Employees of the Commission (hersiniafter “Conduct Regulaﬁon Y at 17
CF.R.§200.735-1 et seq., sets forth the standards of ethical conduct required.of Conumission:
members (i.e., Commissioners) and current and former employees (heieinafter referred to
collectively as employe@s) The Conduct Regulanon states in part:

The Securities and Exchange: Commlssmn bas been entrusted by
Congress with the. proteption of the public.inferest in a highly 4
significant aréa of our national economy. In view of the effect
. ‘which Cotsswn action frequenily has: on the p‘ubhc, itis

i,

.2 Thxs Senor Ofﬁcml r@quested conﬁdenhahty, ﬂ;ereforc, this pcrsOn is yeferenced
: throughout this report as “Senior Ofﬁclal »

¥ The OIG had frequent email andtelephone communicafion wi
+ Febmary through the epd of April 2009. Exhibits 1; 2 & 3: in
the OIG aﬂerremgnmng allegations against hiniself in the CITS TP etber 2008 Senu-
Annua terior C)‘»"bxt 1. Despite titinerous promises to provide 3 “writte pamative”
to'the O ,, ever provided any written response. See E:dn‘bxt 3 also:
'refumd'to ObmitTo e,stnneny before the: OIG .
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~

T

'I‘lns docuiment !SSﬂbject m tllg ;)mvkums of th anaty Act of #9734, and may nquirefedacho& betorg
hosuive: to third o yeilactiod ay beehi pecforived by ths Office of Ingpecior Geigeral, Resipisns
ke or my 1t“w;thout thefispecior Generals appmwl, ’

of: thsmpbrtsliﬁnﬁd vot disse

‘important that . . . empleyees , . . maintain unusually high
standards 6f hionesty, integrity, 1mparualxty and conduct.
17 €F.R. § 200.735-2, _ }

The Conduct Regulanon 's Rule 8 prohibits: former Ccmumssxon employees ﬁ'om
appearing before the Commission in a representative capacity ifi a particular matter itr which
they participated personaﬂy and substantially while an employee. fora period of eitherone or

- two years. 17 C.FR..§ 200.735-8 {(italics added), A single i mvgsugnon is;presumed io

Wnsﬁmtw particular matter for at least two years irrespec ive of changes fnithe issues.. Jd. A
‘matter is defined 4 2 “discrete and isolatable transaction or sef of transactions between .

indentifiable parties.” Id. Rule 8 further states that-no waiver will be granted if the proposed

representation would cieate a significaiit appeatance of impropriety orwould otherwise -~

advexsely affect the interests of. xhe govemment. Id.

“The Commxsslon s staff has the obligation to oontmuously and dlllgently examine and’
investigate instances of securjties frand, as set forth in the Commission’s Canon of Ethics. 17 -
CFR §200.50, et seq.” The Canon of Ethics states that “{iJt is charactoristic of the administeative
process that the Menibers of the Commission and their place in public opinion are affected by
the advice and conduet-of the staff, particularly the. professiotial and exevntive employees.™ 17
CFR.§ 20051, Herce, “itis the policy of the Commission to requu‘e that employees bear i i
mind the pnm:xples in the Canons Id

The Cation:provides, “In administering the law, imembers of this Corrimission should
vigorously enforce- -compliance with the law by all persons affected thereby. 17 C.F.R. § 200.55.

" The Canon also affirms that, “A member should ot be. swayed by partisan demands, public

clamor or considerations of personal popularity or notoriety; so also he should be above fear of
unjust eriticista by anyone.” 17 CFR § 200.58. The Canon fiwiher states, “A member should
xot, by his conduct, perniit the i nnpmsron to prevail that any person can improperly influence
him, or that any person-unduly enjoys his favor or that he isaffected in any way by ﬂxe tank,

posxtmn,pmﬂge, maﬁlusneeofanypmon. 172 CFR§ 20961
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A Allied Capital, Corporatlon : L L
l One of the Largest and Most Promment BDCs

Acco:dmg ‘t0 SEC officials,. Allied Capital Corgorauon, headquat:tercd in Washmg.ton,
‘DiC., i$ one of the latgest and most will-known publicly : d&veiﬂmnem
companies. Transcrptof Testimony off®©) st 24, 200/

 hergto as Exliibit 4, at 15; Transeript of Testimony of Umdentxﬁed Semor Official in Investmert

(Rl

Matiagement (“Senior Official Tr.”); September 11, 2009, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.at 18: . 5
Eirhorn’s book at 43. A business developiment conipany (“BDC?) is-a conipany that is created ‘

. to help grow small companies in the initial stages of their development. ‘Exhibit6, BDCs were

created in a 1980 amendment to the Investment Company Act of 1940 (1940 Act™). Id. To ,
quahfy 4s a BDC, companies must be registered with the SEC in compliance with Section 54 of

sthe 1940 Act. Exhibit 7. A major-difference between a BDC and & venture capital fand is that

BDCs allow smaller, non—ascmdxted investors to invest in; staxmp cgmpamﬁ See
http./iwww nvestopedia.c6

Acoordmg Bl:)(f:satea'-='i sef,
of registeted inves SOt ES 1 i Iy 4 ;ﬁeanD"C-:s:
Tr.atil, P lamed “BDCs, by the:r very nature are akm 10 elther private: eqtuly or
venture capital type of fund, but it hiappens to be-a registered fund. They can and ¢
illiquid instruments that dor’t trade.” Jd. at 12, Thérefore, according to®")©)
often an issue because of the nature crf their investments. Jd. at 11. '

Alhed’s meuntles are regnstered Jpursuant to Section: 12(g) of the Secunues Exchan,ge

' Actof1934 (“Exchange Act”). Exhibit 7, Accordingly, Allied s fequired to make perodic

s with the SEC. 1d. According to Alhed,BDQs vere created by Congress to-encourage ' :'."‘f"
thie: flow: ofmpitalwcompamwthathave lumiédaocessto ltsng-term mmﬁnent capital and . ‘
v allie whott Tn additi

otherficeded 1 mom hittp £/

“Aflied ptowdes privately negot:dted debt and quty fmancmg to mlddie market companies,
with a primary’ focus on pnvate ﬁnance. "Exhibit 7, Allied farther descnbed o

BDC regulauons require. the BDC to maintain a conservative

. .capltal structure, limiting the amount of money 4 BDC may -

. borrow; pravide transparency 10:investors through, periodic public
reporting; and limit transactiops with affiliates. BDCsare also
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required to gssist poitfolio- cmnpam&s by offermg managena!
advice and otlmr msoute%

Accordmg to Allied, it ‘was; fouhded in. 1958 (as a smaﬂ busmeSs investment company)
and has financed thousands 6f small and middle marketcompames Jiiv:the Utiited States. J&. At -
the end of June 2009, its portfolie.included investments in 92 different companies “thatgenemte
aggregate-annual revenues:of; »appmmmaﬁaly $10 billion and employ. more than 49,000 people™

Id. According to Einhom, in 2004 Allied describéd itself as having a “private finance porifolio
fincluding] investments in over 100 companies with aggregate revesiues of ini excess of $1it.
billion, suppomng more than 100,000 Jobs > Emhom s book 4t 256. : _

B. Even Though Regulated by SEC as an Investmeiit- ‘Company and Consxdered
- High Risk, BDCs Could Go Unexamined for Several Years

As noted above, to qualify asa BBC companies must be: tegxsteted with the SEC under .
the 1940 Act. Exhibit 6. BDCs-are dcsxgaed to accommpdate private company: investments. Jd cw
They have their own unique statutary ﬁamework and rhenr own umque 1ssu¢& Scmar Oﬁimal

Tr. at 15-16.. Aecordmg y7e N

case waiting to happen.”
attributing risk profiles for mveshnent compames only mvestment aﬁmﬂrs Ia‘,at 17 Whﬂe

the Commxssmn has resxsted asslgmng nsk proﬁles for chsiment compames -asif-does
‘mvestment AL IS, ans 37

oo el

17;:see also Senior Olficial T¥.. A 16-17. ~Ac:«:iordmgto

consxderedhl h risk firms, ﬂxcrexsmdeslguatadtxme frame . in which BDTs é}z&tobcexazﬁrhed
by the SEC.®V© Iy, ar'17. Therefore, according t4™ ") |BDCs can go tmore than five
N k. g " 5 -

bemng examined.” Zdk-at 18 .

bt

eSSt for Seig Invxtmmt _
Adlvisors and. Investmeit Compmw for Exammaﬁon” (Neve.mber 19, 2009), dvailable at
-hithy:/fwww,sec-ois.cov/Re \ ' »

estified ke doss not ﬁnd that observation tmublmg bbcausa BDCs ate
it of the. marketplace and oﬂy,affcctasmaﬂnumber of shareholders.
Y. at17 A Senior Official in the Division.of Trivestment Manage: S -
‘ment Management”)stated that Investment Mangement spendsadispmpomonate N
amnunt oftime on issues related to BDOs,. gnventhen number-and size; compared to- - -
other mvestment compames Semor Official Tr. at 17. ,

16
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C. Valuation.of BDC Invw.tments

BDCs:are required to valug: eaeh individnal investment on-a quarterly basis. See Exhibit
6. ‘Asa BDC, Allied primarily invests in flliquid securities which lack: readily avaxlable mirket
quotations. If. Wheirmnarketquotntions ave not readily available, fands must value porifolio
Secuities dnd all othier assefs by using fair value ax deteriiined in good fuith by the boatd of
directors of the funds, pursuant to ﬂwr&qulmmemsofﬂxe 1940 Act a6d SEC guidatice issued |
thereunder, as well as generally accepted accounting principles: (“GAAP”) and the Financial .-
Accountmg Standards Board requifetiients. See Exlublt 9, : o

According to a Semor Official in the DlVlSlOIl of Investment Mangement, thereis 16
statute or rule-based methodology that fonds are required to-use'tg determine fair value. Senior
Official Tr, at 83-84. The Commission bas-issued guidance i two relevant Accounting Series.
Releases (“ASR”) related to fair valye ~ASR: 113 and ASR 118 Exhibits 10.& 11. Those. ASRS
were issugd in 1969 and 1970, rcspecnvcly. ' .

"ASR 113 states “Asa geneml pnnmple, the current ﬁur value of' nestncted Seourities
would appear to bé. the amount which the.ovmer might teasonably expect to receive for them
upon their curent salé” Exhibit 10. tcontinies, “This depends on their inkerent worth. . .
ad;usted for any diminution in value fesulting from the restrictive feature.™ #d. ASR-1 13
<cautions companies against: usmgan “autornatic formula” to determine value. /d. ASR 118
‘states that no single standard exists for determining fuir value of assets for which macket |
‘quofations are niot readily available,-and that the board of directors should review“all .
appropriate factors relevantto the value®of the seourities. Bxhibit 11. In 1999; -a Sepior Official
in Favestment  Management weotéa letter to the Tavestment Cormpiiny Institiite: whlch stated that,
ASRs 113 and 118 conﬁnned to xepment the: views of the Commission related to ﬁm' wrdlug,
‘Exhibit 12. :

This current-sale valuatton test became an issue betweén Allied and Einhorn, Allied
issued a white paper, whichEinhorn was highily critical of, entitled, “Valuation of Rliquid -
Securities Held by Business Development Companies.” Exhibit 13. Allied took the position in
that paper that the appl;catxon of ta:r value by a BDC for its illiquid portfolio is-often difficult to
align with the speeific requiren 0f ASRs 113-and 118. Adlied stited, “The concept.of

“currept sale’ for: purposesof eteritiining $iir value in ASR 118 is difficult, ifnot irapossible, 1o
apply in the casé of a BDC’s portfolio.™. 2. Allied concluded, “In gereral, the SBA [Small

sess Administration] Policy is Fac more applicable o the portfolia of aBDCihan the .
valuanongmdance sef forthyby the SEC inthe ASRs. 1, :

10 A
Both the Semior Oﬁicxal mInvwlmentManag gree thatadditional

updated guidance is needed. Semor()fﬁclal Tr, at 89 ; O Tr.at 14. Investiient

11
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wnit has prepared many drafis of valiation interprefive releases for the Commission’s

YOO e ap1a, Investinent Management issugd a seleot bibliography on
A €s held by tepistered investment companies in an “attempt o fill in the gap*
. until ypdated guidance can be issued. Senior Official Tr. at 93; Exhibit9, - ) T

___[®X7C)B)E)

A Allied Successfully Urged the SEC toTiivestigate Rihorn and il Hedge
. Fund, Greeslight Capital, Without Evidexice uf Wrongdoing After Einbiprds
Negative Speech About Allied ~ ~ i

L Einhorn’s Speech

Ori May 15, 2002, Eighom gave a speech at.the Ira W. Sohn Research Conference for -
charity where he.and pther portfolio managers were asked fo share theirmost compelling
investment ideas.. See hitp:/fwwwfoolingsomepeople.com (includes the complete videotaped
Speech), During his speech, Einbiorn described why he believed Allied stock would decline and
Gresntight Capital held a short position int. Jd, Specifically, Einhom expressed his view, that
Allied liad 4 nainber of imj aired investoients that it-held at inflated: values which resulted i
ovesstated resulis. I Rinhoi concentrated on jts valuation methodologies for Allied’s
porifolio investiments. 14, . :

. Dusing the speech, several in the audience wete on their Blackberries, although when
asked about this in his SEC testimony, Eiuliomn said he did not realize this. - Binhorn's book at
161; Bxhibit 14.at 97-98. According to Einhorn, the day after the speech, the New. York Stock
Exchange closed Allied shares for trading becanse there were so-many sell orders if could not

open Allied’s trading in an orderly foskion. Fishorn’s book at S5. -
Binhora notes o his websife wslatec forbis book,

" Whatfollowed was a firestoiin of controversy. Allied responded
with a Washington-style spin-job -~gttacking Binhomand =~
disseminating halftruths and aytright lies; Rather than protect

investors by reyiewing Einhom’s well-documented case:against -

Allied, the SEC— at the behest 6f the politically connected Allicd.

— Instead investigated Einhorn for stock manipulation. Overthe -

ensuing six yedrs, the SEC allowed Aflied to make the problem -

12
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oent yeats, but the Commission lias deférred consideration. Senior Official
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bigger by approving moré thian 4 dozén additiotial stock. 0ffenﬁgs
that ralsad over $1 billion, from figw investors. , _

This speech by Emhom set off a well—pubhcmd feud between. Alhed and Emhotn that

continues today. See; &.g. February8, 2007 Forbes Magazine, “Allied Capital’s Blood Feud”

Asdiscussed below; a couple of wetks after the speech, Finhorn <contagted this SEC by telephonq
andthenmwnhngw:thdemﬂedallegatlons of fraud by Allied. At the same time, Allied
successfully sought a mieeting with SEC.officialsdo urge an Enforcément inivestigation of -
Einhom. Eriforcerient almost immediately begdn mv%ﬁgatmg Einhor related: fo his speech.
about Allied. ‘While the agency did begin a lengthy exammatmn of Allied asaresultof
Einhom’s allegatmns, it took Enforcement another two years s before begmmng its mvesuganon
of Alhed. i

2. Allied Sf'epp'ed U'p its Political Efforts

o~

'Einhorn alleges in his book that Allied is polmcally connected, pointing.ouf that: Alhed is

inections to the SEC. Allied’s| 4 ad worked for the SEC, an¢

ook &, 25&263. Binhorn claims that Allied aecelerated its political effor:s”' onwe the S seC
investigation of Aihed began. Id. at 256.

~ Actording fo Emhom Allied began a pohtwal actxon commxttee in Octaber 2004, Just
foutmonthsaﬁer Allied ai Tz L began

and ofber cf eats on‘matters ofsecunueslawregulauonandcompham - Exhibit1s. In
addxﬁon, Allied bired' LannyDa‘vis, former White House counse] for Prcsxdent Bill'Cliriton, fo
gmde Allied inizinagenient durmg theé tire after Emhom 'S speeclu Einhom 'S b(mkﬁtm.

- -(b)i7>(0> oy
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Congress. Jd. at 9| Ladded that given theirsize they had.a ot of: mﬂuence, he "sald BDCs

were “fighting out of their weight class.™ Id. at 15.

3. Allled Met with the SEC to Urge Investigation: of Emhom

Aceordmg to-a Senior Official in Invwlment Managemeng Aihed requestsd 2 meetmg ’

vmithforcsmen'tiﬂIuﬂeZG(D tOlIYtDBOll ’b <_u fo itvestivafe Binhom. Senio!
attended. e nete,”
wWas.

who Was represénting Allied. Td at48,

did most of the talking at that mesting, accordmg 16.the Senior OfﬁcxaL
sd"what evidence Allied presented that Emhom and Greenhght Capitalhad -

engaged in Wmngdomg the Sénior Ofﬁclal twtxﬁed,

Well, they had his speech thcy had hls admtssmn ﬂxat he was
short. They had their beliefs that they wete doing the nght thirig.

,

- & Mot€ récently, BDCS hiave been actively meenngmth(?ongressand the(?omnussmn
. According to & Senior Official from litvestment Management, BDCs havé found aflies on
Capitol Hill who are willing to encourage the SEC to amend and liberalize the-rules
pertaining to the types of companies in which they may invest. Semor@fﬁcxal Tr. at22,
From approximately September 2008 until January 2009, there were more than ten
meetings between BDCs and the SEC Chan'manand Comnussnonets. Id 41.29; see diso .
Exhibit 18. - . ,
7 BY7YC) is curferi tly 4({,)(7)((;)
(h)(7.)(C) )fAl_hed See hitp: £ SpRpp——. ¢ | PR pore . N _..;-,--.-\‘=».=\'» '..;,:" A G
T ~....._b)(7) Froame oA

o

ami(b)(7)(C)

Aemrdmgto several w1tness$,; Allied often referred mnor work experience
| (ke SECSas e Tighom’s book af.123 & Transcript: ofTesﬁmonyo .
3 ,3uly30 2009 attached hereb asExhibit 19, at
ead; igator on the st 3
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From, thelr petspective, they were in the right and he was it the
~'wrang and: Enforcement should hop to it- .
Id at 5%,

_The result of the:meeting, the Senior Official said, ws thatthe facts memed W posstble X
wrongdoers: Binfiom or Atlied, Jd, at 49, The Senior Official testified that he took: the position .
that Allied should be mvesugai’o;d. Id: at. 52. Pat instead, Enfomementstatted mvﬁﬁéanng L

FEinhorn first. 1. at49

150 confifmed fhat Allied identified Emhomasapos:nblef ibjectdudngs
geting with then Enforceimént Assoiate Dirctol Exhibit .
esénitation t6 Enforcement oni(b)()'c) ;

12 nd Greenlight Capital. Jd
o the SEC along WAt TWO T0-HC use attomeys, ﬂ,e' ®D(C)

ing T !
that E prcementcame to mchxde Greenhght Capltal asasubjeetofan
also:said the first time he heard about Allied"s wrongdoing was from
e theymeheatedmatoﬂxm Were. allegmgAIhed Wasa Ponzl .

BOO

’ Alhednselfayear before wh
scheme. Id.

®EXO)

investigafion, testified that she believed the beganas @ feferral from the
New York Stock Exchange in DecemberZ" Z, and that Bn orcement’s Market Survexllance

Thity21, 2009 attached hexetoasﬁxmm 21 2424, Hawever,
the sousce: of thie investipation oes 5

). |(B)S)

stockwbemgmammﬂmd ) ®)7XO) Ihen taid WWW' ;

pame, .
B, ®)5)
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" Senior Official recalled that Einhoti asked if it was alrighit if the phone call 'were rect

B.  EinhornBegan Contacting thie SEC with: Specific, Detailed Allegations and
Evidence of Wroiigdoing by Allied at Same Time Allied. Arranged Meetmgs S
to Urge SEC to Investigate Einhorn f

About {wo weeks afier his above-refereiiced spesch, E‘mhom conmctedﬂ:eSemor g
Offigial in Investinerit Managemeéit by telephone." Seror Official Tr. af 43. “The Sehiot, Official '
teshﬁedhereoexved ﬂusca]lﬁ‘omﬁinhom “out of the blue.” . at 41, Dmngthatfmpaﬂ, S Y
Einhorn said hie wanted to talk fo him about Allied and valuation. J4 st42. ‘The Sedior Official oo
told Einhorn he could not talk about Alfied, but that he would be glad to- speak 1 him, abont how
valuation is tobe: done under the Investinent Company Act of 1940. Id.

According:to the Senior Ofﬁclal, Eidhorn called back shortly themﬁer Jd. at 44 The :
o, and

thie Senior Official said e agreed 1o having the éonversation récorded. 7d. Emhom theﬂ .
explaitied he knew the-Senior Official could not tallcabout Allied, but that he did want to-talle

. about vﬂ?:;,on issues. Jd: The Sexior Officidl testified it was clwr Euihom wanted to talk
about Alli

Idtdn’t think he was just theoretically mterested i valuation by

investment companies. Thete arén’t t06 many people out there in

the wotld that-would do that. I-could put ope and one togethér atd

figure out his interest in Allied valuation. .

Id at46. . . . : o

' g the conversation, Einhorn 4sked the Seitior Oﬁcxal; whéther the 1940 Act-current, A
,,faxrvaiuetestwas 0. be used for mufial funds rather than BDCS which hiold illiquid secuzities. -
Exliibit 23 &. Einhomn book at 79-80, ‘The Senior Official responded, *‘stagtee,” aﬂd explam"d IR
toEmhom&athewasfawmﬁmﬂwd—endﬁmdssmhmBﬁcﬂave.gy d i . T

e -
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mapp:opnaxe fora fand, to value [its mvestmcnts] at'what the fund would expectto get for itat
some point in the ftire because the approprizte standard is, “what cani you get for it today?™>

_ Id. ‘Einthorn responded, “Righit, but-their commentary, their response would be, look; nohody

evier sells these loans.and the anly e anybady ever-sells these loans is xwhen they’ie it .

financial distress or when the owher's Jit Hnancisl distress and has to conduct.a fité sale” #d.

' "The Senior Official replied; “I wouild say that wonld be:all the fore reason to hold if at.a lower

vilie because ﬂmf’swhaht’s” Jd. At the endof that cgll, the Senior Cifficial testified

' t!?t-4 if what Elnhom was; saymg was:true, it was “worthy of further inquiry by the SEC™ Id at

- AG6-47.

i Just after that phonc call, on MayBl 2002, Eirihorn bcgan wntmg to-the SEC with-
detazlgd complmntsabout Allxed.“’ Exhibit 24, In all, Einhom sent about adozen le,tters to: the

A0 the Senlot Ofﬁcml, Emhom wrme, “Wiea:emtmg 1o ca.ll yom‘ atte:moﬂ to certam
dlSCléSHICS and accoﬂnung treatmierits by Allied Capital Gorpomtron (“ALD”) that we bBIere
4re worthy of & inwestigation.” Exhibit24. He added, “To:summarize the main point, we believe

" that ALD does ot npmgly with:the Investment Company-Act of 1940.” 14, Einhiom pmmded
specific examplgs of its investments and his *systeniic valuation concemns” and aitached Allied’s
_ white paper on valuation of illiquid segurities it held, a May 2002 Merrill Lynch report 6n

* Allied, and artranscription of an Alfied conference call, among other things. Jd: The Senior
Ofﬁcml tesufied he believed he forwarded to OCIE: and Enforcement. ‘Senior Official Tr. at47.

_ Elnhom sent two more letters m the Semor Offisial. in Investment Management. about
 Allied - on July 31, 2002 and on September 3,2002. Exhibits 26 & 27. Inthe July 2002 Igfterto
‘the Senior Oﬁiclal, Einhomn addtessed the recorded conversation he had with the Senior Official,
since Alhed expressed concert about’this conversauon. E;dubxt 26. In. aaddlﬁon, Emhom

accounmtg gmdam should not apply 0 4 BDC sxwh #s. Alhed statmg, “[T}hc cuneept of

“current sale® for purposes of determining fair value in ASR 118 [SEC guidsance]is difficult, if

aiot iinpossible to apply in the.case of a BDCs por;foho dd. Again, Einhorn-attached seveml

. documants, incInding a report prepared by Greenlight Capital called; “An Analysis of Allied
Capital: -Questions of Valuation Technique:™ 7d. ‘That report apparently had been posted oti
Gmnhght Capital’s website: aﬁsr the speech. S

The'SaptembeﬂOGz Tetter tethe SeniorQ expmssed concerns abonf, dong: ather
. hiigs, pevaith eonfererios odlls with Allied and. changes in-Allied's disclosure Tiguage relatodts
mtsvﬂﬁanon ofmvmtmenheand Allied’s *'gross overvaluatwn ofltsstakemlusm&ss Loan |

o Wc note ﬂlat Emhom stated in these letters, “In full losure G:cenhght has a short
position in ALD [Alltcd] common stock.” See e.g:, Exhibit 24
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. Ehis-docuiieiit i¥ sabjeit to the provisions of the: Pmmcy Actof 1974‘, sind in:
disclosuie o thivd p'ai'tieis. ‘Na reda tiay beeix perform ector General. R
oF this l'epdrt should.ot disseminate or copy it wlﬂ:ouuhe lupeetor General’s appwwl

- Express ("BLX™), Allied’s latgest investment and the second largest small busmess'{endmg
compaty according to- Emhom (whwh he hard complmned about in the. earher Tetters to the SEC).
.Exhlbxt 27.

Theresfter, Eidhom. continued to-serd several lettets to the SEC with allggatlons against -
- Alhed to vanous staﬁ" and officials at ) g SEC. from October 2003 thirough Javusry 2008. Seé '
Exhibits 28 - 34. Einhom, sent lefters ,. October 16 2003 and December 12; 2003.
_ Exhibits 28 & 29. These letters were supplemental re: hoanda es about Allxed’s alleged
wrongdoing, fol[qwmgameenng Emhomhadm__ nA st 13 2003, See .
Exhibit 28, In his sixth 1etteraboutohgomgfmu& AT AIITEd, Bifmormwote-to bn April

26, 2004, “Allied confiniies to aise:hundreds of millions of dollars of new nvestor tapital
through registration statements declared effective by the SEC . . , .. Bécanse Allied’s disclosures
are pcrmeated with inflatéd valuations and petforniance’ sthng, investors who rely on theti - .

' are duped into overpaying Allied for its stock.” Exhibit 30. Einhotn added, *“We, again, fequest
that the SEC puit a stop to Allied’s, fraudulent practices tbrough forcefil and timely regulatoty
action™ M.

hoo oters woro followed by a May 7, 2004 Ieftrt B
refereniced below, atiout BL> hiep three Tetters, dated Sepfenmber: 20
' une 5, 2007 and January 28, 2008, 1o Erforcement’s lead atforney
mveshgatmgAlhed Exhibits 31; 32: 33 & 34,

1 ihe September 2004 letter; Einhoth taised thie
issue-of his home telephotie records being stolen. Bxhlbnt 31. Inthe January 2008 letter,
Einhorn alleged that the “massive fraud” at BLX came to light and a BLX -executive bad beeii
indicted on chargesof defrauding the government of millions of doltars of Small Business
Administration (“SBA™) loans. Exhibit34. That January 2008 letter also alleged thatAﬁxed had- -

_ repeatedly molatsd the settlement order with 'the Commlssxon, discussed below. H.. R

Supervised b BN |
Whi, One Year Latﬂ(b)m(c)

Shmly‘aﬁef Aﬂledmetwthoiﬁcmls st he SEcmurgéanmvesngaﬁ(b)gr)i(gﬁgghﬂmm
: - g i g i ton.into Wwhethe

: (b)(7)(C),(b)(8)
B)S)

o nder inquiry (‘MUI”)
but it wwas. latm'renamed, In

. 1"

R (b)(7)(C) (0X®) BB 35

18



This document is suluect to the:provisions.of the Privacy Actof 1974, and may requife reifactivn before
disclpsure 3 third parties. No redactionhas been perforiied by the Qffice of Ipspestor General. Retipieiits
: of this reportshould not disseniinate of copy it withoitt the Yuspector Genersl's approval,
®)5)

(b)5)

—A Formal issued on February 11, 2003 :
B)(7XC) I(b)(7)(C)

BES) [BXTNC) ' . RS [ BXTHO) !
|BX7C) OXNC) as designated officers in/the mvestigation.”

\BXNe) were theattomays wheo: worked on fhe
W(b)(7)(C).(b)(8)

vesugauon Dutmgthat ttme, :

OO

"), AUgust 7, 2009, attached iereto ;s Exchibit 39t 25.

(bX7)C) - e BN
__[O0O e taff sitorey in Enforcement :
(bX7XC) and was, pro _ (b)(7)(C) G©) BXHO) .

worked under then ' 2 When he Was 4 et alforrey At

until his tenure.in Enforcem i 'I‘ranscnpt of 'I‘estxmony of

®XNC) August 11._ 2009, aftached hereto as Exhibit 42,at8.
BNE) ﬁ 410 give testimony to tho OIG. Extifkit3. T i(b)(7)(0) wa a-

o umetopreparea"wnttznnarmnve” responsetotheauegauonsagamsthm: Exhibits .
- And despite repeated promises to provide the OIG with'a’ “\vriﬁcn narative, never
provided any response, Exhibit 3. Duting the OIG’s severl a i
testinony of a wiitten résponsé to the: ailegatlons ! oluntanly pro rided th
information refated to our mve,sﬁgaﬁoniiurmgtelep hone-calls, I 0 -

S S e and F:e no longer Commission employees andlc) ' fis
- Towdeceased, - :
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s

However, the record shows that during the ¢ urseof thi

‘ staterients’ made in the Greenhghtreport

. This document is'subject to:the provisions of the Prwaey Act of 1974, and miay reduire redaction. Before
dnsclosure to third parties. No:redaction has been performéd by the Office of Inspector Genefal. Recxpiems
of this report’ should not disseminate of <opy it without thie Inspector General’s: ’approvﬂ, :

. [P0O a Great Deal Abont Allied Dunng Course of -
ORI westigation |

Wlmmedtohmre “2ec0™ il vemeit in h

learned 4 great deal about Alfjed ads meenng 5 Hicials and
reaching out to SEC officials and-smmwane at the SEC, 8s dlscﬂssedbelow y2i
he: had 0o idea Allied would be his chent when. hejoined‘ Venable. Id. -

b)(7)(C BYNC). b
a. |0 ) E-Mails. Show::d ius Engagement 114( ) )
) gbg(7)(c).(b) .

ase
(B)T)C) b (b)(8
e—maﬂs show he'was acnvely engaged inthel i
;sé’f?ﬂ';fly e ealy ‘gmtbs;fgx?{ e Cr o SONUTITI RS . .
when the] (.08 1vestigation b think e thongh mv&sﬁgaﬁon
could turaever around for him.” 1anﬁed th;: excxtement abqut
the case was related to pioving matipnlafion in the credl tnarket, not.sa e

Allied/Greenlight aspect of the investigation, Jd: She added, “So T thirk'in ind
had great potential for him but then he: quickly tired of it. Once e st of ot into ﬂie case and
realized: it was not going to be a’ huge payoﬁ' he quickly checked out.” H

themss;tfxdoveﬂaﬁwmxuf‘ what ; wéa"ré‘do'iné.- ibit. '

group had looked iinto ernhght Capwal’s criticisms of Allie : tfj‘(%?q th
ﬁa}ied B | :()()() ded hese v | & Allisd an ig-lt
productions, but [an oticial in] IM SHll bas copics. T'll Give. et a call dnd seexfsomeeneean .

| piskitomuptodsy ExbibiedSs. - o .o

03 meehng;wiﬂr Alhed to “idiscuss the: false
L ponded, “I’ll attend if I ean:” Exhlb‘t 46

When told sbouta scheduled Maich 14,2
B)7XC)

B Accordmg to the SEC’s Intmnethmrcnﬂy works i the SEC’s New York
Regxonal Office. - .
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Tlnsdocument is. .subject to the provismns of the anacy Actof IQ‘M,and may requlreredacﬁon before.
diselosure fo third: ‘parties. No redaction has-been performed by the Office of lnspeefor General. Recipients
of tlus :report shonld ot disseminate or copy it without the Inspector General’s appmval, -

[OIGI®

anp lpokcd at the matter informally (I dan’t even
beligve Tt was a MIUD) and kicked it to Phllly whien it didn’t look
- like a fast hit aghinst Allied {there”s no write up), Philly did some -
. sort.of review, thongh i it's not clw they re-visited fsic] the

valuation i 1ssue
' dd. -
. : B)7)C) " ®XT)C)
In.addition WOt [ made contact withi a, colleagus in [Investment

Management] about three 0 to *grease the skids,” somspwk, Oh getting somie

[avestment Management] help. Tputa new call into hing 2
suggested some names ... .* Jd; That e-mail ended with
in inifial bontacts with other G‘mmnsslon offices.” Jd.

ding your message, and he’
vritin ,“Ishmild parﬁcxpate

that Alhed’s counsel told h¢r that OQIE -eXaminer
last few weeks to

This is news to me. Pl

ngthy e-mail outlmmg herihoughtsabout G 1 Capital’srepoﬁ on All 1ed in preparstic ;
for heir testimony of Einhom. Extiibit48/"© lsent an e-mail on May 21, 2003 tc
seeking further information on OCIE’s examinal 'on.of Allied sfatiig; in part: <
Tinderstand tha @ (and raaybs B have
been looking at Afied ana i raliiing its heldings in
+ certain privately-held companies BN an attorney in my

branch, hasrepottedthatOCIE isconemplattg a réferral to
* Enforcement on this;issue: T salled: y&sterday to find ouit : a bit: more
. about: OCIE'S review: and determine, the best Icould, where:you-
stood on the issue, £.g.; [sic] hasa referral been contsmplated by -

. you and the OCIE front office? isa refertal l:kely‘? rd apprecma

any information you can. supply

. Bxhlb;t 49, O o .
mailllmg herhe had 3. lengthy convarsat:on thh
ad leamed OCIB would be
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This dou:ment is subjed: to the: pmv:sions of the Privacy Att of 1974, -and may require rcdachim before
disclosure fo third parties. No vedaction, hus been performed by the Office.of Inspector- General. Reciplents
_ - of this report should:uot dissemiinate or copy it withonk the 1nspectereneral’s3pprwﬂ].

Tooking irito two primaty-issues: (l) the way Alhed determm&c

“fair value' of its holdings in private companies and ( )

Aﬂied must raise/borrow capital to pay out its dividend.’
© said that OCIE is not contemplatmg a referral to .

En orcementatﬂus hme :

_ Exhibit 50..

v Mareh 18, 2003 brepared 4 12-pag .detailedmemotandum to his supergisox
0 . & ' -.. &g -'v:f. ~. Nt 5 5 . B e

e

OE)

P ) hggresswe!y Quwtmned Emhorn in ’I“wtnmony

T Emhom appeared for testnnony at the SEC.on May 8 &9, 2003. Exlnblts A& 52,
- Einhorn was represented hel then nartner at the law firm Akin Gump Strauss Haver &
Feld,® snd A of the taw firm O’Melvcny&Myers LLP. For the
SFL},l(b)U)(C) J@(b)(?)«:) Ia

: Itis undisputed ' present forpart. of Einhorn’s two.days of tesﬁmany

befove thie SEC, and was achive inaskife questions, 1. Jaitfied, however, he did fiot
ta'ke Einhotn’s testimony; he explaitied jas mponsx bTe Tor ihat and said he only” “stepped

“in’ to.ask ! aserwsofaggrwswemmnon& * Exhibit 20. He-saidhis;goal in that téstimony was -
f‘to et Einhora to admit he attempted o dmfe.do. vi the price of Allied stock when Einhorn gave

his speech in 2002, as Allied had 12 [P0O |fysther clsimed not to have reviewed any
of the dog) : mresponsetoﬂxembpoemsthey:ssued, saymg
it was: standard opemting procedu:e in Enforcement- for a branch chief to rely.on the staff -

B InOctobet2009, Zabel was appointed C‘hmf of the Cnmmal Division of thc Southem
Dlstnct af New York’s USAO See

- 22



ey s,

. “confrontational” and “very. -aggressive™in his questzomng of Ef B

‘This document is subject to the provisions of the anacy Act of 1974; aud may require redactum heiom ’ ‘
disclosure to third parties. No redaction has been performed by the Office of Inspector General; Recipicats. -
- of this repoct should not dissemiinate or copy: it without the luspector General’s approval.

®()C) cx oA oa e e SBY7)C)
=attomey whoxsmkmgthemumony Id. ﬂxd_admmhe pmbably-revw.. ‘
teshmcnyouthne I _ '

A review-of the. Einhorn twtxmony shows that lt beganat about 10 a.m. on May
and continued until about 5:30 p.m. that day. E '7 it 4. The transcript demor
showed up on May 8,.2003 about an hour after] bege ﬂ:etBSmnony, he began asking

(b)(?')(C) '

.quwtxons very qmcklythemﬂer, and continued: ut 3
May 9, 2003 about 9 a.m. Exdiibit 52. Once ag ‘ egsin
'app:eared.a!ii’ll)a;mmn@l mediately began questioning Embiort,

i€ of that day § teshmony, whxch concluded at aiound 12 pan.. Jd.

Einhom complamedto the OIS @bout, anddedxcated a.chanterin. his book to, the -
téstiinony he gave before the: SEC in M‘ay 2003. Einhom claime: :

Einhorn's book at 162 & Transcript of Testimon i .

2009 -attached hereto as Exhibit 53, at47 agres ‘j 25 “a Tittle comhatlve” and

& ‘7‘) ez to me it was over the top. t: at 48-49. Shie further testlﬁed, | thought ’
¢ was sort of puttmg on a;shiow ,foﬂ EXC L”" Jd. 3148,

Accordmg she befieved dunng Emhom s tesnmony ., tried hig
-hardestxcget!)nvxd nhorn to just ‘fess b tha lated the sfock, but David -
Einliorn did ng inulate the stock.” T, at47.t¢st1ﬁed that she had a Jot of -
' ole in that testimony, including thathe did not assist het, hadan

problems with .
maﬂequatereason of being laie, andhestartmgqmzzmgheraboﬂwbatshehadaskedlimbom

IS

.

estimony during the first break. Id. at 47. Einhorn noticed the tensjon betweert -
"  testified before the OIG thatit almost felt likd wa
questioning. Einhorn Tr. at 50.

d, [P0 Reached Out to SEC O
. iformation about Allied Durisig

Investxgatmn

thcre were melated to Allled Exh1b1t20 AsAa resul

. were being taken related fo Alhed, and the positions different staﬁ’and oﬁiclals held about

< g [BOO],
N . - F L S] ) - :~-&L‘

O(NC)
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This dbcument is subject to the pnmswns ofithe Privacy Act.of 1974, snd may. require redactlou before

disclosure to thivd paitics. No redaction has been perforied by the Qffice ol ispector General. Recipieitts
of this repoit should: ot dissepiinate-or copy it without the lnspector General’s approval.

whether Allied was \iiolating -ﬂjg law; In additio
mﬁlAlhedatWMChhe, ng

. C ) .
ed out: BT and examine
AODNO) |sisk

areeualtﬁ- ifa

way Alhed determmed fairvalue of its pnvatc holdmgs, and (2) whether Allied:must
‘raise/borrow capital to pay out its dividend. Exhibit 50, The e-mail continued,
said that OCIE js not conxemplat:nga referral to Enforcement at this time, but thz
as they get a better handle an Allied’s business.” Id. In addition, he recelvedextenswe

comments fron regarding the difficultiesof bringing:a case against Allied on.

. T the QIG’s telephone conversaﬁons with
fromh;sumeattheSECsbowthathespoke G

2003 aﬁerhstestxmonyo nhomn, - ) 1 evedAihedwasnotengagedin
‘wrongdoing. Jd, ‘Since Einhorn’s testimony was on May 8 & 9, 2003, : ation
took place in May or June 2003. As discussed below; despite wh '

_ May 2003 the OC[E examiners-had: found ev;dence ofwrongdoing j ¥. l d.
; OCIF

was &atxsﬂgd Alhed was noi: engggee%b’)'n 10 ngﬂomg in: late Junc 2003

2003 an old him tha iheyWéclosmgthmikivédéaﬁo SFAll
ewdenceo mpmper valuauon of its" funds Id

: du 't!:edthatat thatpomt there wore “xssm [showmg] that fhiére-could-be wrongdoxng”
by AT wd."‘ I at 63 : ,

16 When aSked xf that would ha\te beena more-accurate statem
whether it-appeared Allied ws ‘

what he said and asked P70 [he ‘

1(®)(7)C) -



" “This document is subject to the provisions-of the. anacy Act of 1974, and may redquiire Feddetion Hefore

disclosure:to third parties; No redaction has been perfomed by-the Office-of fuspettor Geperal. Recipients.

of this repolzt,shouﬁl not disseiminate.or copy it without the Inspactor Geneml‘s a*pprowl. :

7XC)
o remembered meetmg with sifficials; including the Semar Official in
Investment Maﬂagementand sta&m thig n;yisiun nf Maiket Kegulaﬂon, ahaut: b (' ix: ity
- methods related tO B )¢ estmehts slnding Allied EXthitz& Inaddilld )

e OLG o rcalld il 10— e vering i I

Management on Alhed apd that OUIE found that Allied was: ﬁnancmg their dividends. Jd.

ey The record shiows the
d;scussed below; did nol bel

e 'f_smEs ﬁndmgsabout Allxedandaskmi% to

e Addgtgonallnvestigaﬁv‘e.Eﬁ'oﬂs b '
1. 13Boxes of.l)ocuments:Sﬂbpoen#@d'frmeMHm_

d ootten lots of information from Gmenhngapltal apnd
T. at 28—29 In faot, ﬂxey rneexved 13boxesof -
= P SO . TN w-a¢|ﬁ @ﬁalﬁ hedge

G réenhght sre bis.

EmhémAto prepare o his testinmc
docuiitents from Einhorn, mcl
fund managers mvoived in the

' Accordmg to Emhom,, Greenhght Capltal recerved a letter on January 24 . 2003 from. the ~

SEC advising that there was an informal inquiry-and asked for Greenlight Capital to preduce -
sevetal documents including their resedroh on Alhed, all coritaces miade to third parties abiout
Alliéd and their research file o Allied, all their frading records, an organizational clist, costact
information for all Greenlight Capital elnpleyee$,all documents describing their-compensation
structure, & list of their bank and brokerage accounts, and their telephone records from’ January 1,
2002 forward. Einkorasbook at 149, . Binhorn also wrote that Tates in Spring 2003 Greenfight -

- Capital received a:subpoetia for Binhiorns testimony and thore documents. 7. af 153. Eirihom’
sdid the secorid subpoena for documents requested information on othier companiw, mfo:mauon
on trading credit derivatives, their client ist, client: redemption requests, and their: .

;cerreSpondence with several other. hedge funds. Id

BT B® ovactieatiaT
OCIO investigation |

had access to numerous documents from dlscovery in; the
f were: valuable to. Allled, notmg*

!

' ., s skeptical of Elnhom s claims:.about Alhed and, like -



g,

. did:not think they ever got that information®©) |

. Emhorﬁ’s testimony before the OIGhet&cﬁﬁbdthat {
‘telephone-récords. EinkiornTr. 4t 35. Einhorn wrote itvhis book, howcver, that amorig the
-documents Graenhght Capml produced tothe SEC in response to: asubpeena they reeew’eﬂ on,

v

Tlns doculnent is subjéct to the provisions otthe Prwacy Actof 1974, and my require vedaction: befire
disclosuve to'¢hird parties, No reddction has been perforwied by the Office of Inspector General. Recipients
of this repoxtshould ot dnssgmmate breopy it-without the lnspectorGeneral’s approval.

“They had evzerythmg because he asked £qr our trading records, aid -
'you have to realize one-of the things Al desperatelywanted o
know at that point was how manyshares were we ‘m“rhendxd , '

* wé by and sell. and so forth. And s liad access to C
‘our trading records. He also hiad ageess toall o "-e‘-m'ailstha'tl, “
had relating'to Allied on every topic. So-there are e-mails from the L
fornér employee who conitacted us, there were.. . . lots and lots of
&-mails relating o our criticism of Allled, -« . including what other -
people-we were talking to and gettirig information from and so on
and so forth. And all of that would be information that T wenid

. think would be inapprepriate for Aihed o have ANty sense, of.
 Einkom Tr.at33-34.

* Bisthorn flrher ekified 000 il ind, “ftint  would sensider to be.
confidential and proprietary informaiion. Axid this was a very heated battle. And they asked for
Tots arid lots #nd lots of teconds, atid then had tiini t6 look through all of those resords in the
preparation for:questioning me.” 4. at 34.. According to Einhorn’s counsel, Zabey ®XNEC)
“would have had the full documentary window into what [Einhom] was doing.™ I
gccording to Einhorn, based on the questionin; _ id “it was vety clear” he had rewewed

" the matenals provided in reSponsew the subpoenas. Id. - -

. BY(T)C .
2. 079 e "'jhoﬁekeggrdsi-an& :

Client Disti OISR

JBTHC) ecali edth

vanted to get the telephone records of allof the hedge fund.
managets, including Emhem, 1o, :

rn of | emcallmgeach ohet prior to trades, but she .

Tt. at 29. Einhom wrote in-his book that
Gieenlighit Capital produced several documents to thé SEC in resporise to a subpoena they-

received on January 23, 2003, including Greenlight Capital’s research on Allied, trading records,-

a listoftheis bank and brokerage accoynts, and theirtelephong reconds from Janvary 1,2002. ..
Einhorn’s book at 149. Howeyer. it is wiclear whetlicr any telephone récords were, proglisced fo

- | T SEC from Groenlight Capi AP0 egrified that she'did iot beleve ey had roquested, of

received, any telephione tecords 2nlight Capital orEmho

1 ®NC) Iy at:30; During

4l did not yraoduce any

2.
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Januaty 23,2003, were Greexilight Capxtal’s telephone: tecords from January 1,2602; the: OIG
investigation did hot substantite this claim.”. Einhorm’s book at 149,

uﬁed that they: dld get Einhorr®s client. lxst. rat30 O elieved -
ranted that hst“to ﬁnd somename onthﬁ hst and oniE name it ontblue sheet hadmg!

ﬂ:emoverthephone I T

) '
Allied from. work on ihe mveshgatxon, and that bie only disclosed oneof -
those things - who Einhorn’S connseT was - o Allied. Exhibit 20.|%"©  lindicated the second .-

‘thing he learned was that Einhoin had a celebrity client. Jd[®7)C) id not disclose to the
OIG the third thing he. supposedly learned. abuut Allled whx eat the SEC.

(B)THT)

T2,

Shifted Attention from Allied Matter, an
Unaware of Other: SEC Achons Related to Allied Durmg [nvestigation
(bX7)(C)
a.. Learsed About Two Prior Ent‘orcement
Matters Involving Allied Wberé No Action wag Taken

‘_ Diring th¢®(©®® investigatio; (Gl s
investigatiopsinyoIing ATA[””) [T at 31- R

group.at headquarters looked mto Allied but dx'

=

here had been two other .
earned that about-a

‘ot pursut it because the

L '-dlﬁicult accounting issues prevented a “quick hit” for his group, vihich-at the tithe was- ‘operaling

nder.s “real time Enforcement” mandate, /4. at31, Theothérinvestigation was conducted by
group.at the PRO: that looked into Aflied but ultimately ¢ sided:to do pothing beoause it
~HVOIVE a“verynatonomly gray aves™of acdounting, I at 32 Estified that she did not-
know 'what prompted tht)se groups 1o look at Allied. Id at 31 . ’ :

>

¥ The OIG was unableto obtam the: January 2003 subpoena ﬁ'om Enfarcement. The April

2003 subpoena, however, dld not seek telephone records Exhibit 54.
1 Blue sheet trading data shows: customer trading mformauon. See “3EC Systems” on SEC.
Intranet.
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b |® G Unaware that OCIE. was Conducting a
inultancous Examinatioir of Allied UntiF Allied’s Counsel
Informed Her : .

Diuting the mvesﬁ gation; testified ‘Was uttaware that OCIE was:conducung
an-examination.of Alli Fr. at 53-54. about 1 'i exaii m when. '
Allied’s counsel, alled to inform herabout this. 7d, According: "ld]‘ '
her, “I'm just tellifig you i becaus¢ T used to work. atthe SEC and i knowtha onen n g
doesn’t always know what the other hand is doing ” 1d; see glso Exhibit 47 tlﬁed

a aﬂerhearmgthlsfro had
r at 53-54. ST ified that shewasuﬁawarethatocm cdndu.cted
exammations of Allied in 13994 and 1999 Jd. at 32. When asked about those examinations itv .
testimony shie stated, “No. I thmkthat’s the first time P'm hdmng ﬂlatﬂcmally Id

: OO oas dlso unaware tbatEmho 1ad sizbrr
Was CORduE gthemvesugatmn. 14. 26317 esti _
with the Senior Qfficial hiit was unaware the Semior Official hadrecewed'- 2tters from Einhorn.

estified she wanted to-speak to the Senior Official before Einhioin’s

: Mimony,{b; ha{®XC) _ lwas adamant she not speak to the Senior Official. Jd. at55.
According 1M [N kolg her that the Senior Official was very em! b

quoted by Einhori in Risreport on Allied, since he stiould not have been quoted i m accordance

with Commisswn policy. 1; fd _ ‘
: GIe) . R
3. There is No Eyidenhysncally Tm;k Nnn-lfubhc» SEC “

Documents
0 id gelt the OIG thiat he took with hinh a “medno pmfnotes,” “personal 10gs”
- and cAlengars rom his time at the SEC. Exhibit 20, Dyrinig telephone interviews wi ;
- he mferredto these notesand éalendars which he said reflect selephone calls ke made and. . -
iSaatuad telated 10 thﬁ(b)m(c) (0)(E) investigation, Jd As discussed above, for exatmiple, -
- old the OIG that his personal logs show that on J; anvary 27, 2003 Jhegota telephonc

B TheSenjor Oﬁicml testified e knew w - a5, but-wias not suce he had ever

. - spokentehim. Senior Official Tr. at 68. He t%tlﬁﬁd Emhom quoted him accurately, he
did riot'need Commission approval to. be quoted, and. the quotw did riot cause him.a
problcm. Id. at 62,




, Thiis document is subject ‘to the pmvismnt thel’rivacy Act of 1974, and may require redaction before
disclosure ta third parties. No redaction’has been performed by the Office of Inspector Gegeral. Recipients
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call ot ®NC) b "
‘because theére was no evidence of 1mpropet valuauan ofits fuhds Id The OIG uncovered 1o

evidence th ook any non-pul r Case related documents with him when he 16t the
SEC. Nor dixweobtain evidence that eceived any non-public information from any, .
SEC employee aftet. leavmg the. SEC. ) ) , : o5

: WhenweaskedEmhom)fhemsconcqmed 12 w;
 documients when he leff the SEC, Einhorn testifi 00O g, -
_knowing How many shzres Greenlight Capltal WS short in Allied _-at fhis, pm:e at maf date;’ Of

did Bot trade after the Speech, “I thmk ‘that wotild have been mformatxon T very much dxd not

size of the posmon - on - Allied so de,sperately wantedm know the s:ze of the posmon L Id. )
at36-37. - 4

4. Enforpement Qulckly Found Emhorn Engaged in No Wrongfdmng

gg;m@ 0 aﬁv&ugauonwasmtfmauyaosed until D x 13, 2006. Exmm% The

investigation rémiained operr, but inactive after m1d—2003 beeause the New YorkAﬁomey ‘ :
General’s office was conducti parallel mvcstlgauon, which: ulumately rwulted in no charges.

Exhibit 37. According to

In mymind- and in my opinion; as soen, as I finished David
- Einhorn’s testimony, I was conviricéd that he had done nothing - .

wrong . . ..’ at the end of his testimony I was convinced thathe .

had not mampulated any stock or engaged i in any schemmes to drive o .

the vrice of the.stock down. . - ] L
u r.at46. o | B

BN esuﬁed that no one dlsagreed with henon ﬂns Wﬂﬁo Id. Lo

s

5. Emhom Was Not Informed He‘Was No Longer Subjeetof ‘ . i L ‘
Invmtlgatmn, Desplte Reqmtmg Such Nntwe o : -

" Atthe end of Emhom s teshmony in:the O ®E) v&stlgatlon, he requested that
_he be told if the SEC determined Greenlight Capital wasno longerunder investigation. Einborn -
*- testified, < . , it would be an enormons-benefit 16 us if you could let uskriow. ., “whenthe
investigation was complete. Exhibit 52. | ' sponded dirécilyto Einlior'’s request,
saying Enforcement’s procedure wasto, - ' S R
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. . provide & written. tenmnation Jetter at the end of'an ’
mveshgatlon 10 entities or peoplé who we have decided not totake
action against and who werenamed in the formal orderof _

mvest;gaﬁon. Any other notification is at the discre h

senjor management in the Enforcement Dmsnom : ‘
BN las yon know from looking at the formal order, isinthe A o

captxon and is named in the formal order. Greenhght Capltal isnot - g
named, David Bmhom is net namgd PR

) .
Therefore, abcordmg (e ameulatxon of Enforcement’s pohcyand procedur&s atthat . -
tinie, Einhorn would only teceive notxﬁcanen he was no: longer being investigated fsemot

management in Enforcemmt decided to do so. _ )

e couild not tell the OIG what Enforcement’s nolies; was 1
or is now as 1o sending termihafion letters afier an mveshgatwnhasended. ratll- -
19. The Erforcement Manual issued in Ocfober2008, however, lids a Section on teaminiation  ~

letters and is clear dbout whei and to whoiit fhey should be sent. It states, “The Division®s
policy is to-notify individuals and entities at the eailiestopportinity when the staff has
determined not to recommend an enforcément détion against them to-the Gommlssmn. Exchibit
55. In addition, the policy states that a termination Ietter mpst be sent to; among others, anyone
who “asks for such a riotice (assuming the staﬁ‘has decided that no enforcement
‘recommendation will be recommiended against that person or entity).™ I(l

Accordmg to Einhorn, he gave testiniony in-May- 2003 and “fiever héard anothm: word” _
not natified the case-wasover. Einborn Tr. at 67-68, In fact, Einhom testified that - _

(W) (C) 6 the named subject of the investigation, only got a termination letter: after

TR directly fo former Chairman Christopher Cox. /d 41-69. It is unclear whetherthe

_ Enforcement Manual articulaied the: pohny in eﬁ‘ect prmr‘ 16 October 2008, since the OIG was

* unable to findany, éatlier policy on sending teiination letters. ’Ihexefom ifﬂnspdhoyhad "
‘been in effect at the time of Einhom’s testisony, Enforcement womdhavebeen required to send:

.- him a termination notice shorﬂy afier his testimony when, acpoiding to.the closing '
metorandiin, they had determinied he:had not engagedm wmngdomg. Exhibit 55.

| 6“; eft theSEC After ngmﬁcantl’erformance Prohlems
o BXTIC) :

‘B Was ona rerformam;e ‘l‘m’pmvement l’lan

30



TR

o Ny aip

" Fliis documentfls subjeem ‘the pmvisions ofthe l’rivacy Acfof 1974%“«1 may require ‘veduction hefore
disclosure to third parties. No redaction hias:been performed by the: Office of Tnspector Generak: ‘Recipients
" of tlus reportshould not ﬂ;ssemmau or copy it without the lnSpector General’s approval.

‘ (B()C)

to an-employee when th :
their job reqmrements

emgloyee 's job perform
ibit 56 ®7NC)

i placedonaperﬁ)mrance

®BX7HC)

BIgLe)

xmprovement plan (“PIP”), which is gwcn

i determiiied to be-unacceptablé:in one or moie elements-of
l‘r at Il A PIP is awnttenplana;medatmismgan

ith assistance such as closer supervision.

tnew ®(7)C)

from whcn heand (b)m(m Worked as

(b)k)(d)

(b)(7XC)

(bXTHC)

' menioranda and other docements.
diffictiltto woik with. [

BY7HC) |wa.- S ¢

. stified that the comp}amts Aho
notiollovwngtbroughwcompl' nroiects.

Iamis abot
tQ [(0)(7)(C)

perhavs did not remember, that
.-

Tr.at 10'
®MNC) Ty, gt . According fo
uaﬂlh!m.-anﬂsomem 7 tomther pporasked

’were that he was not responswe and

[BDS

A , (b)(7)(0) old the QTG that duri BINC) B hemré(bxmc) l )
1BXTHC) ®XNXC) dldn*thave anybody watchine him closely and so he really just started
comingmhour*siﬁfeandmotreally domghxswork.” OO “According’t
vas.alse exneriel ing “signific pal problems, {®

g BHTHC)

V (b)(7)(C) rl'- at. 11 12. (b)(7)(C) tes show tha (b)(7)(C)
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This dotunent: lasubmctto the: pwvismns ofm Prmcy Au OF 1974, and may require redact
y dlscfoSumm ird; parhes. Nu reﬂaet:on has been pﬂform ;

tlaspector Gen
écti l-'Genél'al’s appmval

l (BX7XC)

added, “We used:ojpke that bis real job was réal

’iqhad worked\m h

orkes it lavesets:
i ) T s

fiad individual eheemigs With ea“h P“”s’*m in

“twio-mgjor problems™ wnh '

failing to- follow through on aé"sxgnments,and {2) leaving things to the last

s resulting in %) DOE WO kptoduct. Id, Accordmgto thatdocument, these 1ssueshad been
d. wi :1 (b)(7)( befon

ing: 40P fre wims i offort
' FEH28,00C _ handvr

: ntaﬁesmonfo‘
hTbIESS ‘:oraveryshortpcrmd'f‘hme befere‘b’”’(c)_formetl. separated from €
agencyGnSeptﬁmber 11,2@93 hewmked in: OCIE” BXNC) ﬂzou ent to w

"We ¢ .wsthathewassuﬂasmgmdtothe‘
Moreover, Hiis OPF shows thathe .

vas ' : SK-IS Step27(l¢f at anyof$131 911(2:))(7) oy ~14—Step pa
(w1_. a salary'of $: 124’442) ®)(T)C) -l - |
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B B

that he w movingto OCIE and had been thin
alsosaldtherewasgoss1p'.

. [®{D©) ,
Accord s .

ofiie up with a solution to the probleni thz
become in Enforcement. And specifically pretry muchanyone
‘'who reported t(®X")C) bveg, or during the time that he was branch

chiief even beforc 20t here, supposedly asked to be moved out of

his group. _ ‘
1. 2t 19: . ‘ . S

Whenasked, “Did youp{ ™" Fespotided, “Yes.” Id.

Db. i
Id. a‘t "1'3-19-. BN

: ylng the SE ®)IHC) omed the law firm Venabl EC)

0. work for Veenable because he followed.
B)(7)C) and ®(7)(©) - Enforcement, with
Wwhom he had worked at the SEC. 07 ©C) _ Tamed PO fam e SRC 1alB)0C)

J®X7)C)

- [(BX7XC)
\ﬁmh Venable and OCIE, that he went to work for |

aﬁe‘ hanS returne froma ieave of absen ®X(?)(©)

€ Atthe time-of onr telephone interviews with """ it February 2009; he mdxcated he
had not woiked for Allied for a couple of years, Exhibit 20. Since that nme
joined another Jaw firm and is. now a'solo pract:tlonel; H
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bX{7)C
7;, |0 h! teredas (b)m(c) orAllxed One er‘Later

pistered B or Alhed on behalf of
vith Allied was on the

oo the Senafe Banking Committee to say, v
saldthatSECChaumanMﬂlamDanaldsonat o

short sale transparency bill-, and Alh
“let them {the SEC] do theirjob.” Id.
the time was pushing for a hedge fund

OIS

In 2005, GreenhghtCapxtaland Ejinhiom
about possxble 1egal md ethxcal wolahons b

testitiiony ab.but'Alh > Eliibit 6! E)(-)'( n and hlseounsel pouﬁedam i
addition, Binthon hoted that accordmgm Venable's press release issued when it hit ' '

he was'to “concéntrate on corporate mvesngatlons white collar& secuntles litigation and

* -compliance. 22 14 . :

Based

a.

During the 2005 i mqmry mto thlsmatter the OIG mtervmwad the Asswtant Ethics

Cdunsel_<b)‘7)() ‘within the SEG?s Office of thie
General Counsel, wi for Alhed. Exhibxt 62. 'Duﬁn'gi

e worked on oF TS Cotamission, 1. He dlso fold ehadnotworkzdonthe L

investigation of Allied while he was at the SEC I

There is no cv:dence. ] ::r or Allied violted any specific rule,
. regulation or statute. Forexampl" 68 notmlateanycfmnalstaaﬁesu(:has 8. _

et mployeesf;om.," ifgly making afiy
depariment or agencywmxthemtantw influence.
(b)(7)(C) e iz (D)(7)(C) Fm‘ Allied" -

Tacttha ~whﬂehe dldnotspec;'.:cally‘\mﬂcon

USS.C. § 207, wiiich prokibits formé goveri

- Neverthaless, the OIG- mvmngatmn fo;md i
‘based upon meomp”lste mfotﬁlatmn, incliding

2 Asqoted above, the OIG condugted an inquity in: 2“5 and fowid nio viplation.of any -
Jaw SEC rule orregulanon, oreth:cs rale. . )

N



‘ _Tlm documfnt ussutuect W'the provisipas dtthu’ﬂvaey Act of 1974, and pay rpquiwredactlon Before
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oF thiis report stiould not disseuijtiate: on&;i;r it

@hadlmedagrwwabommwduﬁngmsworkandsupemm
investigation just. baforehxsdcparture from the SEC.® -

TheEﬂucs Gou‘n‘sel told th
um)mpﬁety i (b)(?)(C)

could not preven Ogon

‘emplayee. Exhlblt b3.

' b)(8
ofth ORI

he OIG that everi though there may be an. appgax:ance:of = "

for Allied one ymt affer leaving tlie SEC, after he learnsd e
s trading positioft in Allied, ameng other things, the Ethics Officé -
ﬁ:om registeriti as: smee hie'was:no loiiger at SEC

(b)m(c) Cant,acted Etlncs Office About Concem for
| ®XDE F tential Conﬂlct of Interast

it becayse there mightbea. .
mvestxgahon, lflet’éfbrb,- o
oke toin the Bthics:Office. I .
WA .~ __pf e Tssue. and told Al

for Allied. Jd.at53.

Office either said or i hedthatthwh"‘dg“’e“ '

» Been clearet iwhﬁezh. Fd. 2t 5,
; ‘d not takﬁ any other actmn related“to thlsmatter. Id at

B OUE) L
)  that even.ii hadwatkedonA}heddmnglu‘stﬂnme o
i dnotbeaproblemm hOXAC) for Allied.. Exhibit62. - -

old the OIG, becatisg ypically iivolves some prospective
ompany wants Congress totake:and (fongrms is pmhxbmd from
mﬂuencmg the outcome of Comxmssxon investigations. ld:
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(b)(7)(C)
C. - ‘Allied’s.Counsel Informed the. SEC, and Criminal Authorities, tha {
Engaged in Pretexting of Eithorn’s Telephone Records After He LeTt
SEC, But No One Ever. Informed Emhom of This Matter

L The Pretextmg

’ According to Einhom, he-and others nntlcal of Allied, were ﬂ:e v1¢t1ms of pretextmg »
Einhom’s book at 213-215; see also Exhibit 64. Protexting i impersonating someone to-obtain .

their: telephone records and because it is identity.theft, itisa eonsldemd a cnme 2 Exhibit 66

In his book, Emhom noted that hé discovered that his wife’s (Gheryl Einhorn' s)
telephon records were taken on Deceniber 7, 2003, when he was:told a ' womniai called AT&T

~ and identified heérself as “Clieryl Einthorn™ and used her social security nitiber to open an onfine -

billing account for his home telephone. Einhorii’s book 4t 215. According to Einhorn, the
caller directed the phone company to send coples of Bmhom s:home telcphone bills to an AOL
account. Einhorn’s book at 2]5.

2. - Ajlled’s Admlssion and SEC Disclosure of Pretextmg

Bmhem first raised concemns that Allied ﬂlegaﬂy gamedasseSs o his phone récords ina_

- March 2005 Ietter to Allied’s Board. Exhibit 67. Einkorn wrote, . . . iny home phong records
were amerig the records thiit were illegally accessed. . . . Like me, at least four additional

individiials have been the victims of this identity tbeﬁand access device fraud. The only thmg
that copnects the victims is that they have all'béen critics of Allied.” Jd, Allied xesponded a
week later; askmg Emhom for specific information related to his allegations, ExHibit 68.

Emhom feiterated !us allegation and eoncerns about the pretexting in a letter fo Alhedm

September 2006 secking to have the Board conduct an investigation into the matter,  Exhibit 69.

 Eleven days later, Allied mponded 10 Einhorn and smted, “We have« Iooked into your. allegatxons

e

LA Ptetextmg became mdely known ina hzgh—preﬁle thatterin Septembet 2006 when it viis”
revealed that Hewlett Packard Co. (“HP™) Genetal Counsel, at the behest of HP '
- Chairworian Patiicia Dunin, used security experts who in turn hired private i mvesttgators
 "to obtain HP Board members and reporters® telephone. records by impersonating them in"
.ordeito identify the source of an information Jeak. Exhibit:65, Dunn and the Boaxd. -
. members were‘charged WxthwoiahngseVerallawsresmcungnnaﬁhonzedaec&sto
:data,andtheSECalso InveS .] e thsmatter i

B We note this was & short txmé aﬁcl OO et the Cbmmissi‘an and began work at

© Vienable representing Allied.
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" that Alhed‘s management played a role in-an attempt to.access your phone records:and have  © -
 found no e¥idence to support: your claim.” Exhibit 70. Allied also noted thiat thiey weie: skeptical -

- of Einhiorn’s miotives and were; therefore, not disposed to credit his clatms without

“contoborating evidence.” Id.

Aﬁerdenymg for someumethat it had any invelvemert i ilrle;gauy:bbtainingtEiﬁhom’s ‘

telephione-records, Allied filed-an SEC Form #10-Q” with the SEC §n Mirch 2007, and disclosed
the foltowing régarding the pretexting: ' :

Inlate December 2006, we recsived a subpoena:fiom the U.S,
Attorriey for the District of Columbis requesting, among other
things, the production of records regarding thié use-of private
investigators by us.or o agents. The Board established a
committee, which was advised by its own counsel, o review this
wmatter. In:the course.of gatheting:documents responsive to thie
subpoena, we. became aware thiat an ageiit of Allied Capital ~ |
obtairied what were represented té be telephonerecords of David -
Einhorn and which purport to be seconds of calls from Greenlight

. ‘Capital during & period.of tine in 2005, - Also, while we were

* gathiering documients responsive 1 the:subpoena, allegations were
made that our management had authorized the acquisition of these
records and that management subsequently advised that these -
records had been obtained. Our management hias stated that these
allegations are not true. ‘'We are cooperating fully with the inquiry
by the United States Attorney’s office [sic].? -
Exhibit 71.- : : '

‘ Ina February 7, 2007, Washington Post aiticle entitled, “Allied Capital Sags Its *Agent’

Got Phions Data;” it quated the stafement outlined above in Allied's SEC Form “10-Q.” BExhibit

72, The article‘also obtained a quotenid statement from _
“Einhorn.was quoted as saying, “After five years, Allied Capifal-has acknowledged a tiny piece of

orn redcting:to Allied’s disclosue.

iis rampant misconduct.™ 4. He noted that Allied left upanswered, however, questions abotit

% Ris wiclear from Allied*s disclosure Whéﬂxet they dxscovemdpersqnal home telephone

xecouds of David Binhom as well as telsphone: tecords of Greenlipht Capital during o
period of tinie ih 2005 or whethisr it was just-Grees ight Capital’s seleplions records.
Thattithe period (2005), however; is inconsistent with what Einhom says he leamed
 gbout the pretexting of his home telephone records ¢, that his home telephone fecords
~ were taken in Deceniber 2003. _ . '
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T 1ctmn over theissue. Id. at 112, According t0 y checked with the

- Allied Tega thepremxhng .4t 114. TheUSADwas actzvelylmkmgatﬂle

[

'I’his docummtis snbjecﬂn the pmvmons of thie Privacy Act of 1974, and may reqlnre redaction before

dlsclnsnre tothird parties. No redaction hasbeen: performed by the Office of luspector General Revipients
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Who at-the firiu Kniew: abouit the ptetextmg, who hired the agent responsible for obtaining the

_ records and hiow widespread the : actmty was. Id.

" To date, Allied has 1ssued no other statement or disclosure regarding the pretexqu

OO :
3. Allied’s Lawyers Told the SEC that )was Respoumble _

' for-the Pretexting

The Enforcement Division learned in early 2007, just before the ﬁnal settlement of‘ the
iftivan ent mveetxgahon of Allied discussed below, frotiLoutsidé counsel for Allied
E: ~ ponslble for obtaitiing Einhotn’s phoné records.]

j lmng the settlement cﬁscussxons between Enforce e

16 Who werepmentat thaf 168

had ad ebneﬁng about the prete' i wheiher Enforcernent had
Enforcement group who handled the action and settlement against Hewlett-Packard for a similar
type of act, but concluded Enforcenient did not have jurisdiction.over - the matter because they
did not sce a potential secutities law Vistation.”? Id. at 109. Tn addition; Enforcetnent mstmcted
the USAO to mfonn them if they beligved-there was 3 potential: -securitiés law violation by .

" Oclober 2006 info potentially false or misledding disclosures made it SEC forms Bled
with the SEC earlier that year. Exhibit65. The disclosures related to the resignation of
one.of its diregtors. J2. Tn May 2007, the Commission filed settled administrative
chargw against HP “for failing to disclose the reasons for adiréctor’s: abrupt resignation
in the midstof HP"S controversial investigation info boatdroon: leaks:? Jd, HE was -
found to have vxolated the. pubho reportmg requxrements of the Sepurities Bxchange Agt
of 1934, K i

~
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[BNC
R eamed,andagrandjuxijaScOnvcned. Id. at115 O0e 'assum uned
either-a subject, targétorwnmessofﬁxatgmndgury. .- I

, ! .-C
" (b)(?)(c:) '-: IR
¢ |BXNC)

i embered lwmmg from Alﬁed*s counse

BX7C)

had posstbly hired someone, an mvest;gator. AndT -
don’t remember specifically, but that the investigator may have
gotten access 16 thesé records and that there was aquestion.as fo
whethe®P©  had asked-or authorized that particular

action: and whether the: companyhadbeenaWamofnt
» Id.at47u

?é))m contmued, “F vaguel y recall there being some issues abiout ﬁgunng out some miore of the
details.” Id. Inaddxtm" ®XC)_ old the OIG they learned that the USAO started an

" investigation although!! ’ d not know the status of the mvesugatlon. I at49. . ’
. ©)XN)(©C) ~

A ; O g stimony ao Wi
_smble'.cmthepretexhng Exchibit’73, [tap' TR

i ‘ad with Allied where[®) Jlesitiod: that

have engagedlhthe retextmgof L teSimony,

had contacted the Eﬂncs Oﬂ?oe, GIG or a state bar-after lea}nmg
ave: been responsible for the pretexting[®) _ did not recall contacting anyone: aboufhis.

Tr. at-50.
HEX(C) .-

w S oonmted by V\hhnetHalwho 2]
and appear to. state in short W among othe: thmgs “a]legatlo'

The OIG contacted the USAQ to inquire about its investigation into Allied, and learned

that it had investigate id forrtied & gtand jury. The OIG made arequesttothe |
USAO to revnewthelr 1

OO | The USAO was unable to focate their-
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4 . Emhorn and his Co!msel Responded o the Failure of SEC fo
© Take Attion Agaliist Allied’s Adnntted Pretextmg

: OnMay 1, 2007 Zabel, Gmenhg‘ht Sapital’s-and Emhoms counsel, Wroteto Alked
about its public disclosure and admission that it had become aware “an agent of {Allied]

sy

obtained what were represé ..;jtobetelephommpds of David Binhom and which purport to.
be records oF calls from Greentig] t Capital during aperiod of time in 2005, Exhibit 74, Zabel
then wrote, “Despite this: pnbllq drrdssion, Alliedihias thus far spparenily kept the.inf '

its agents illegally acvessed and given o information to-Mt. Einhori toallow him & evahiafe.
the incuirsion itito his pnvacy and the nusappropnatxon of his petsonial information™ &2

Zabel. requ&etcd tobe lmmedmtely provided with: (1) copies of the phone- pecirds wihich .'

_purport to be Greenliglit Capital’s or Ejnhorn’s; (2) a description of the methods used to obtain
such-records, including the information used to misappropriate them; (3) the identity of the
persons involved in obtaining the records; and (4) the names of anyoneto whom Einhorp’s

. personial information or misappropriated information was provided. Jd. To date, Einhornand

his counsel indicated that they recexved no additmnat infotmation reldted fo the pretextmg‘
'Einhorn Tr. at 116-117.

o Durmg the OIG’s tesﬁmbny of Emhom, Zabel éxpressed his extreriic dnsappomunem aiid
frustration with the SEC related to the pretexting saying, “And.1 don’t understand why the SEC
. doesn’t force them to reveal what happened in their internal: mvmﬁgaﬁon into: this:* Emhom Tr.
at 117. Zabel continued, .

One of our big complaiits, there are a number of thémm, but the
SEC, among others, seemed t0-not care at all-that the oompany
came out:and admitted < afterdenymg and lying sbout it . .

. denigrating [Einhern] s Hhis! being a figment of & pa:anmd
lmagmahonxszhemytheypmit,the madefalse;prata

. mmnnmnmcorrectstatmisqut »actions of thelrown

. agehits, And the SEC-didn’t sezov ¢ care aboutapubhe campany
having agenits do something Iike that; which in om-vmwnsacnme
And Tthis] is not the coniduct that the SEC should want public * .
companies éngaging in, because it’s very chilling o the free kind © -
ofdebateandcnhmsm ihatthc SEC, Ithmk,wanfsmthe ’
marketplace

" files, which hiad been: archWed. We note, hnwevgr, eveniftheyﬁad lqeatedthose )

archived files many of the documents v were likely gmntl jury: mmmalsaﬂdcoﬂd not hiave

been shared w:th the OIG.
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Id.at 37-38

- Zabel said, ™, . \nebadyhaseven called b5t tell ug thisis whatwe found, ot here®s why

- we:ean’thring a case”™ 1. Jronically, given that it appears a former Enfomement attorney
engaged i the prefexting of Eitibiom’s reconds, Zabel said, “I can guarantes you thiat if ani SEC
person who hiad beeii. involved in invwngaxmgaeompany pmtexted, thiat there would
have beensome pretty swift: action.” Id at 40. Riirtherifiors, Zabel continued,

Thatis just amazmgto methatnd one s malﬂng [Allied] do
“anything about jt. Theres no re: nthat yowcan’t haves
campany you now know, they ‘have admitted: they did: something
mong, at least address some of tiose issues. Even ifil’s an
angfo;ngmv“;.?v tion, wiicre. are: the tecords; who got e, who:
are these people so we can know who they are and we.can watch
out for them and what they might be doing-with therecoids. .. .
It’s really ait dutrage. The whiole thing is. That pattis. patﬁcularly
- teckless on the part of the govemment
d at 118-119. .

In companng ﬂns to the Hewlett-Packard mattcx, Zabel staxed,

“This is.not just pretexting: 1 vfewed this:as more important that the
Hewlett-Packard onie. Hewlett-Packard was an internial dispute:
which-wasn't good. ‘But it was really just people getting-on each
other within their own coriipany being stupid and pararoid. These
werematketparﬁczpantsangagedmarealdebamofreal o
ihportance, arid oné side employed ditty tactics to iy o shut the -
critics down. And Ithought it was far more significant than
* - Hewleti-Packard, although HP got all the press because there were
. :Sowae-big namies. - .
14.a1 8990,

. } ¢xamin: ';_on of A]hedbeganﬁomaxefeml fromtheSemot Oﬂiclal in- .
' 'Inthment Management. Senior Official Tr. at 46-47. Investment Managetnent is responsible
forassisting the Commissioii in investor protection. and promofing capital fcnnauonﬁxmugh
oxzezsxghtandreg\ﬂanon ofthe mveslment managemcm mdustry See :
h' WW.Sec V‘[ Vu whEtwe ) _‘ € "'entalsorevwwsmvzshhent

a
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company and mv&eiment advxsor ﬁlmgs and assxsts the Commission in Enforcement matters -
itivolving investment compames and advisors. Id. The Senior Official testified that he spoke to
OCIE about domg ain éxamination of Allied because hie thought it was moie appropnate than
Enfomgment since OCIE was: ﬁamihar mth thevaluanon issues related to BDCs such as.Alljed.
Id, at:52-53 & 59. -

' QCIEcommencedaremewofAlhedeulyzooz based on Bighorn’s first letter to the
~ Senior Official, discussed in section ILB. above, Exhibit 75. ‘Eifhomn; in his phone calls and
 lettérs to the Senior Official; had outlined Allied’3 position related to not following SEC -

guidance on valuation of illiquid securities which arénot traded in the markets. Exhibits 24:26

.&27. Allied wrote a white papet on its-view that the SEC giridarice in this.area should not- apply
to them. Exhibit 13, The SeniorOfficial testified that he did not agree with Allied that it was
dxﬁicult, if not: 1mposs1ble, to apply SEC guidanee on valuation io BDCs. Senior Official Tr. at.
57. He forther testified that he was worrded that Allied was valuing its assets consistent with its

. white paper, which would not have been approprigte. Id at 58. According to the Senior
© Official, this made it vmnhy and. appropnatgfor the Commlssmn to look into Allied’s valuation.

1d. The Senior Officia disagreenient withi the whife paperat 4
meeting with ®"C by d Enforcement. Id  Affer that meetmg, the Senior Official sdid, Allied -

‘Thé OCIE examination was conducted. at headqua:ters beginning July 23, 2002 and was
completed on March 19, 2004. Exhibit 75. According to the examination report, the last
exam,matmn of Allied was conduvied in 1999. Jd. During the period of the exammat;on,‘ the

Allied, Jim Brickisin (“Bnclnnan’ ’).2’ Duting this satme time peﬂod, staff foenibers of :
Immlment Management and Enforcement conductedthemown review.of Allied, and joint: -
divisional meetings were held. Jd. The exanitiation veport was issued on April 26, 2004, and it
was: forma[ly referred to Boforcement foraction. Jd: Enforcement had already operied a niatier
under inquiry (“MUT) on March'9, 2004. Exhibit 76. OnMay 9, 2004, Enforcement opened a
 formial i investigation; discussed below, into Allied based-on that examination.- Exhibit 77.
. Despite finding problems fhat-merited a réferral to Enfotcemient, OCIE did nidt send Allied:a
g deﬁcxency letter, “wlnch meant the people [at Alhed] Just kept on domg what they Were domg,

- ® Brickmian; 2 retired realesratedeveloper fromDallasmthabackgroundeBA fending, -
- wasavocdl critic of Allied shio also sent [ettérs of complaint o the SEC aboutAlhuI
. B 'f'.bxté,Euﬂmmsboakat 137, Aoco:dmguoBm}wm,Bnchnan 0D ~
Allied and they began along dialogue about Tssues related to Allied. Emham s bookat
138. Eintiorn described Brickiman as “oné of the best forehsic detgctivis I have ever
met,” and claimed although he hadspcnt many hours analyzmg Allied; Brickman has
Spent many more. Id .
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aLE

unless they gOtthehmt that we kept:
* Transcript of Testimony- of (®)7)(C)
Exhibit 78 at 29:

A. Deﬁcxenc:es and Ynuisual meumstanm with ,the Exa

!hl (bX7XC)

,asmgned 10 thls exammauon, and she was supcmsed dnrectly bj(t»(?)(C)

<b)(7)(0) T

stified that “this whole exam was imusual” because ‘generally examiners go out to
the firm for'a week or so, interview management and review docupents, thien cone back to the
SEC to write a report and then send a deficiency letter) °C  |Tr, gt 12 &20. But in this
case, there was no visit to Allied’s-office ‘'whatsoever and 6 déficiency Tetter was.serit (although
rt was referred to Enforcement) This ¢ ion of Allied vwas:also prolonged by delays and
ook siohta e Mofeover as discissed below, the evidence shows that'the

ne; _ : ‘5  worked at the SEC, and he believes anyone

otked 3t the SECIS. wshkc!ytoengage in wrongdoing,

1L 'I‘he Examma

- |BX7XC)

currenﬂy a senior staﬂ‘accountant, was thié primary examiner 2 - -9dto the
Allied examination in 2002; Transcript of Testimony o r.”),
February ll 2009 attached hereto as Exhibit 79, at 8 & 15. Actording to usually

ther s r four examiriers conducting an examination." 7. at 17. At somé pmnt later,
mifiation as well for about six to.nine montlis. Jd. at 16, _
P recunnescomphanceexannner. id.at8 & 13, Pmrtoherworkatthe SEC,

VO 'ed asan acconnﬁan’t mpnvﬁemdust:y forayear Id at 6 Before

had requested assistarice ori the examination/®?©) oil'k'ed on 'the'

- .

as.4n examiuer,
. at 6.

here was no visit to Alfied’s offices located just blocks from OCIE's oifice at the time.

Tr.at17. -

(bY7)(C)

wstlﬁed that at the fime OCIE would send mvestment compmes an

43 -
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- {)(7XC)

Asan exaniinier 4t SEC™s: headquarte :
tlme on exams, and Ihe remamder on speclal prqjects o)

G

%

(b)(7)(C)

'<b)(7)(0) :

ed tol0X7)(C)

i Assomate Dlrestor

Tr af’lOWadmm’edhe “probably supervi

exam.more thanxmo HOOC) T at 19-20
(i vas the g BDC d vy ezt fd

Accordmg
there owns Allied”®©  [Tr.af17. She thought it was strange that she, as.a faidly new

BDCs testifying, “I’s almost like they
however, said ﬂus was the reason she did

examiner, was assigned fa.examine one of fh
-didnt want to find. something ™ -Jd. at 15.
is was-my project to prove myself:” Fi.

be‘_;elévthma she could to.find. s T
®T)(C) ostified that (b)m(c;; - $8:20 meetings she had ‘with Allied, and .
Ul " e the lead in quest omng Id it 21. - old the OIG she was happy to: have

t nd the meetings since she nwded some goidance. Id. at21.

d the OIG tbat by the time she vias broughitii o evaluate whaw
had done had already spent quite a fot of time” and done a fair amounit of wortk. -

®OC) |

exght-quesmm letter, wlnch they ulumately realized “allewed them o lxe fous” Jd. at
-51. She further testified that examiners were not ‘encouraged to-find wrongdoing stating;
“In faot; if T cariie back from an exem and P'd found sometiing really bad, Insed to say |
Afelt like T had to Hide under my desk, becatise 1 kniewe thev did oot want to hear that I'd
" - found something wing.” Jd. at44. Tn-addition old the OIG heexam ©
‘program was much more focused on how many examitations can be completed in 1t e. -
fastest time rather than the quality of the examination work. 12 2t:54-55."C o+
said that she found thit the SEC did not considerita “hot” case when COHDATIES Wi
lying to investors, only when they were stealing mopey frony investor:
42. We note that these complaints are consistent with some of'the. findings
report on Madoff. See Investigation of Failure.of theSEC to Uncover Bernard Madoﬁ” )
Ponzz Scheme, August 2009, available at http:#/sec govinews/s _ :
509.p
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G L EROICS, At

ed tha had_a ,
accouiiting background s¢ she i WITH 15 accoummg. Id atlﬁ; testificd
She was bronght in to evaluate % ite bect ad.a oK

reputation of ferreting out information.
had done 3 vexythoroughjobandwas
9,

BYTHC) Sai

the issue o mvastor dmdends I at m. ~

2. There Was No Visit to. Alhed’s Ofﬁce Locafed Blocks from the SEC

testxﬁed, “I never got it

Just sort of restricted.”
through lett

estified he did not remeniber whyheadqumtezswas cond\wtmgthemﬂ?.
. € ination of Allied, and not the nsual the deiphia ‘ee~(‘?PRO”) w}nchhas
jurisdiction ever D.C. firms such as Alhed‘. [

examination was probably riot-¢ '

o at The T
' valuation issues. I at 19-20, Inaddifion 1mﬁally¢lalmadAlhed ma fow mﬂesaWay

from the SEC .and that it Weu_ld be more efficient to conduct the examitiation attie SEC. . at
21-22. But thed®?© pdmiitted, “it-was fairly cluse Jd. atai Infact, Allxedwasjust ten

8, The Exminamn ka 18 Monthmtzomplete

ecalled on yfwbtothreeméﬁﬁgsmthmhéd:epreseﬁiaumdm‘mgthm%mmanon,
esuﬁedtheypmbablyhadl&mmeeungswnhm- ‘because 7 ] o
W wdtocomeinandexplainwhatmweredomg”
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; “WOIK,
¢ l“;wasanuverallfbelmgtheygmﬁw' _
id '~we’dgetahbtherletterﬁ-omE’ 617k 9
-nhnuedtohavz; additional dutig

who foriierly worked at
it was-élear that

whowoul&representAlﬁedattﬁese meefinas becayse

alk | say, "F, ®)C) How are you doing?” Id. a19-20. es
her involvement in the"AThied examination they met with ,. n ¢ :
Tr.at 18., When asked Lfthebranch chief wis invelved inTh eexammatron, shetesnﬁed, 1o,
(b)m(c) ar i was higher, sort of; than a norinal audit. T'meai it réally was something that

s involved in. Wlnch 1tselfwas unusual * Id. When asked, “Arnd so whatWas

/OUr TP esswnofwhythatwas hatirienin ," fiee ’ i lie
X0 g Allied™ Jd. Accordingtq™ "
®BX7HC) is'a ‘nioe perser used to work:
exaxmnanen, ot becaﬁseofthe size, ofAIhed:-,‘K ut BEeans X

21-22, , . , ,,
b)7XC) ' . -
estified He did not regall Tnowing®"© | 1, 4t 28, Hz fusther testified. e

—

may have kiiowi worked at itk & -»-I‘_Justdtdmtretnember Jd. ‘When asked ifit
would surprise hirn: -: ‘ere,vequlear,ﬂlat.hekne(b)m(c) he : -.
testified “I.don’t remeniber 1€ L knew' .fd_..atz{k-; When asked, “So Ltake it then you don’t
mmembetsaying that i .tgfygfgrk,hm;“’"” a hice person. and

¥ Asnotedirthe QIG's August 2009 Jnvem,gwroan Faz)‘um of the; SEC o Uzzcaver
Bernard Madoff's Ponzi Scherne, exanidniet$ in.that miatter wers also stopped from
- working-on the Madoff. exammatmn dm-mg early2004 to focus on the mutual fund
project. - See itfp:/isec. v/ - :

(b)(7)(C)
VIS 0"‘

1®OXA(C)
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O |t going tbo doing anything legal?; ) _peplied, tuzg harve safl that. 1just don't
: remembet a? Mo

(b)(7)(C)

ig] fadmlmdbebe}revesﬂ;atsgmemdns&ywhousedto Wo:k atihe
herehavehopeﬁﬂyaeqmredacﬁa&ﬂaiﬁﬁdé a/cETRIn ACE) 1
they’re not [domgsometlung illegal)” Xd.. Weﬂ:enask Do you:

eolom yourmewif there’s'somebody who’s working at & firm who worked at the SEC that

1’ sort of giving them the benefit of the doubt as opposed to being more suspicious?”

evenif they didn’t réally know: thembu’t yourknew: thew wao
. hopefully be doing the right thing”. . . 7 Jd. 4t 30
examiner needs to be “propesly suspicious.”
be su%an examiner; she twuﬁsd dldnotbelie :
3& ' |

ed hieee. . . . Well theyshould
estifie elicves:a o

§.  Findings and Referral ;o. Enforcement.

As dlsc.ussed above, the examination repon:t on Allied was isstied on Apnl 26,2004, and -

it was formally referred to Enforcemient for action. Id. As a result of the 18:month exarination
_of Allied, the exariiiners. founid the following three issués that watranted refeiral to Enforcement:

@ [@®
@
Ko

}(b)"(S)

ion, and-you'wouldehppe;that .

answered, “Given thie benefit.of the donbt, pmbably, yes. If you’ve known somebody of |

(6)(5)
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On May 9, 2004, Enfor¢emeént opane
exammatlon, as dlscussed below,

c. Disagreement About Referral to Enforeement and Whether Allied May Have
) Been a Ponzi Scheme - .

(b)(7)(C)

beﬁeving.saongxythamméd

back™ about referring it to Enforeement.

.‘penodsmtlmewherewepro‘;;f;"_ ’td
delays Eo : .

onihat.

P

them to go'back and:do addiﬁonal work, 4. - According t

)C)- t undo what we found.” . Jd,®"© ecalled thaf(
{BY7)( :

and was somewhiat intimidated by him. I, at32. 5

(BX7XC)

e was.a pmblem with Alhed, bu

es ﬁﬁed there were delays in the

would tell
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(bX7XC)
33,

“You don’t know: what you:re. talking about,” related to the'dlvxd‘end issue. Id. at32-

r.atlD Aceondmg

tnne. hedhadxamdmone;y,theyneeded it to pay the-divid nd. Id. Shessaid
vere “very concern " with what ’they found and that*our cgnchlsxgns.
Id. at ll . "

B

itted:he biad more problemis with 'refemng the dmdend lssue than the
-valuataonlssues smgehebelieved Allied was pproperly financire
hattom ling wasﬂwissuemsreferredtoEnfomem_ i

to-get an examination report:referred o
o the Agsistant Director, and aﬂnmatel.‘b"”‘c’
ITr. ~at3l‘.'Aceordiug_ , :
stopped speaking to her formonths
time he was not speakmg 0 D)

el shie was pul rareg
whohas been at the SEC for about <b><7>‘°> Tr af 41

Einhorn reférenced the dividend issus i his May-2002 spéech, talking about how Allied
needed to generate their dividends, 'Rinhorn:said in order for Allied to fund their shortfall they
had to eventually sell: equity to raise capital to pay the dividend, in effect taking money from

* Rew investors to satisfy income requirentents of exisiing investors. Einhorn remiarked 4o the
conference attendees, “Them sd. namefor that. [laughter]” Emhom s reibrenomg a Pongi
schieme. See-'f'J'. : ' : -

Alhed morethancoveredltstogaldm SAvmients
continued:

Oir analysxs of dlsposmons duringthe penod 7/1/02’to 31!3 1/03
shiows that about 39% of disposition proceeds ;reprmnts .
- monitization-of non-cash fetors recognized #s income in-earlier
~ periods . . Usmg thxs 39%tocalculatewhatporhon ofthe

49
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proceeds from dlsposmans during the period 1995 t0 2002 -
represents the wionitization of non-cash incomie secopnized it -
another year, anid .adding this cash to fhie cash flows generated by
anmal ‘operations* shows that cash derivid from inivestiénit L
. activities over thié period mote thati covered thie dividends paid . .
during the period. There is.no Ponzi scheme that:fcansee : f '
. Id. (italics added) - ,

* (NS

ibove, but added “However, this is: assuming that cvery yem' at ieaét 39%. é)f L
i from dxsposmons should'be recogmzed as cash which may be highier or lowerthay = - C
actnaL” Exhibit 75 . %

(B)7)(C) . (b)(7)(C),(b)(8)
repared notes. abdut Alhed related o het work on the —|
xh teg dnring : ;

came in.and mef Wi -t OCIE. 5 %
present). According .w*'. vineed Alhedxs _
not fiiancing its dividend, € »'-thoughltlooks:myandthat, A -
accordmgtotheeompany Aﬂxedlsxssmng,newshamtomahe " .
- new.investinerits ix its:portfolio-and not raising money to pay the

‘dividend. Allied conceded that; duetonecmsmywbounun_g .
treatinent, it could appear that the compar L . _;’ th
dividend, but that is not what is happening® ) lsaid thal
was satisfied with Allied’s explanatlon of
they are still lookmgatafewmmorareas,OCIEmll hkely back S
-off from Allied. - . ) » A
4. . ; ' » .

st fedhgdtdmtmmmben_neeungthhaf\ihgﬁglongal'; )
He further - testified that He believed there was a! basis for saying Allied was Bo owing moneyto
pay for their dividends as part of their business model, whlch would not, make ita Poyzi scheme

his issue and; while -

- |(bXTX(C)
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Id at43. b' oo But, you know, it-wasn ten!mely clear, so:why not refer it to
Enforcementy™ 7d" ™" |explainediit was included in the examtinafion report,

) C
Becausg ;} Bl steoiigly aboit i, 8o [ thought why i
Let Enforcement Jook into it as part of theit review. ¥ou kiiow,
pethaps there may be: something that would come out in testimony;
something buried in e-mail someplace or somg other document, -
somiething that: nnght show their mtentlon of having 'some sort. of a

y Ponzi-like scheme. -
-Id. at-37.

IE ‘ . .
OO Wsirtied the exannnaﬁonstaﬂ:acrossme nwtmnshmxld be“Wlumg“‘O digin and

think about all sides of an issue,” and that there should be a debate about the issues as part.of the
exammahon.pmcess and conchuded that this sceniatio “ideally iliustrites that pomt.” Id. at43.
As discussed below, while this issue was referred to Enforcément, no invest gati

conducted of the possibility it was a Ponzi scheme. . :

D. ~ TheAllied 'Work Papers Were Delpted from Shared Compnter Dnve

: ' iSpetor Ge neral enFebmary 11, 2009 and agreed to give
testitiiony-under oath that same day," " fcrtiéd the-OIH thint all of Tier Allied Files were.

gone {; ed “J:* drive where OCIE cxaminers kept: Ihelrexammauon work: papers and
reports. . at 24-25. According he.discovered the files were infissing
-in January 2009 when atothier letterof complait about Allied g in from Jim Brickman, 14,
-at32-34. The Sesior Official forwarded this letier to OCIE aiid ,

requested thag®X("(©) onvert the lettér to electronie formi. to send 1o The- <
While doing this, ided'to also send the PR other docyments fort her
examination and ToUnd tHém missing. 1 said that the Tast time she had checked the

- Allied documents on the “J” drive was arotind 2004, the yeat sh¢ completed the Alfied - -
exannnauon. Id: at 31-32. Accordmg 10 herAlhed file. mcluded spreadsheets she "

Swprisingly| . [had: mad@acopy of the contents-of the Alhed file ftomthe i
dr:ve tathe “C:” driveé-when she transfemd thz €ase 1o Enforcement,md then transferred ﬂ:at
fletoa CD 1o take home forsafe eeping:

documents were lost. |

. I at 32.

also szud hex‘harddnveﬁl@shad been'totally deleted. .
acopyofﬂzel acumets she believed were in the .~
' estified that several times SEC
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staff had beer unable 1o find thezAll‘iédfepm;t'fén'O'QIE’s internal wgbﬁ@“”"""’ [Tr.ar35 &
47. o ' ' P .

ealizi her Alhedﬁle wasgonc fromthe“.l"dmre shetoldhcr
Id. at61. Upbnhwnngthatthéﬁleswerenuss"
“Ohmy God, vor’e kidding

Id:|®)7XC)

CId g

wa “~vlewngmhomsbook. Id. at 62.

. JEXTEY | o
puet with (b)gl)l() n th )g)l(%;ﬁxlhed file s .
T &k 62. AcCORIME id-natséem
o e P A

Oh. Your files were delemd‘? Welk, theﬁrstthmgwe need to do is
, talktotemtoseewhauheycandoabomt. Let's talk fo them, -
- se& il they can get them back, and let’s talk to them tosee: who has
acc&sstoit,andﬂlm’we’llﬂgmeoutwhatwe e going to do.
-Id.

"not. reacnontothenewswasnormal Jd. at 65-66. Two -

"',tothe OIG. Id.at 63. At thattime, shehadnotheardback from
had leained that OIT could only go back 30 days torecover

found amazing.” 1d. at46. ‘

tesnﬁed,“Deepdn- th
o O s:mducaumhavmhappemadanytumlwstwm
er eSEnea "emOCiEdeletediheﬁléslfecanSe :
aly 1. at 45/97©)  kestified shé had a gut feeling that
was responsible for the deleted files and Al s erdtrectedﬂwﬂlesbedeleted orke

3 'emmmselﬁ 1,3t 68-69.

s heard recestly that the Allied work ‘papess iad b'eea

“deleted ”me“]':”dﬁve dX7)C) Fr.4t 55. -He atlri lltwasun Al or Woﬂ( smbe

i ‘.'ony,ﬁieOIGmedto'dététmmeIfOH‘coﬂdﬁnﬂwhén

33 A e i
- and who deleEdhoseTiles: IheOIGleam&however,thatthmwnowayforanyone

at the SEC 10 deteminie who deleted files from a shared drive.

5

OO leactified
1

nggested they ray also want t go fo the: OIG since .

; somebody pmposely deleted [the Allied file],

.....
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. tmssmg Id. He understood that OCIE falked ‘to their IT Speclahsl:todetermme if the file-could
be retricved, as well as determine how it happéiied, and whether controls could be put ir p!ace o
prevent it from happening again. /d._When.asked what the resuly of that i mquny :
whether the files could be refrieved) " festified, “I dow’t believe:so:” 1d. at 56
furthier testified, “I just have&’t followsTup on that particular issue” . -

o) t"estxﬁed dnyone in OCIE on the “40 Act side could have dcleted those ﬁles since
~ they have access, and that' he did not hiave any adea who deleted the file.' Jd. at 56-57. Wheii

© asked whether he deletedthem ﬁ'om the*J: dri ,Wespénded, “I don’t even go-ontheJ

. drive.” Id. at 57. » , .

As noted above, anorcement npened a formal investigation into Allied-on May 9, 2004
on the OCH afie "'ngbpenedaMUIonMarch9 2004. Exhxbxts76&

was the lead attorney on this inivesti stion>* o
aﬁcr ben;z(b)ﬂ)(c) and

er, ®)(7)C) |

. , Dunng the thme—year mvcstxgatlon of Alhed by Enfomement, the USAOQ for the
District of Columbia became mvolved early on and conducted a pamllel cummal mvesuganm

20-irivestments Allied held w}uch Finhorn had idepfified as- ptoblemaﬁc-
44; Exhibit 84. In addition, the OIG for the SBA conducted.its.own investigation ato Adlied.
" Specificaily; the SBA OIG investigatsd BLX, 4 privaté financé investment cortipany Allied
owned and coiitrolled, to'determine whether BLX fraudulently originated loans to stiall
businesses. Jd. The USAO did not bring securities-related fraud charges againstAllied orany.
1rela,ted entltyor personasa result of that mmhgatxon. Id Separately, the USAO also

-

Ca

d1d agreat Job on the mvesugahon. Semor
ified, - B

- Hewas thomughly prepared for these meehngs [with -
‘Enforcement and Investment Management]: He kuew the- -
_ Bacis. He was diligent,-enthusiastic. He was exictly the'
kind of § guy that was appropriate to mvmm this case as
far as I could tell.
- M
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investigated whether Allied ﬂlegally obtxmed the. felephone recoids: of certam third parhw that -
were critical of Allied. fd. o

. According 1O Enforcement received approxlmatcly 120. boxes of documents -
related to Allied and Teviewed 5ix to ten million e-mmails during their investigation. n3%
Tr. at 58-59. In addition, Enforoement got s1x ‘boxes of documents related to Allied from OCIE.

1d.at 16-17.
OO | 1d the OIG that e had worked for Cooper&& Lybtand Fora fow yéarsdn
1ice on valuatxon issues related to seéurities. Id. at 20.. Duing -

the 19809 andhadsome exXperieni

the Allied investigatio vere three different accountants assigiiéd to work
on it with him - inifially ®"© was assigned, then another accountant for a-
‘brief period-of time, and fina rom Fall 2004 until the endofthe . o
investigation; -/d. at 14. .. fied. that|(®X(")©) yas very unpr_ess_we but they lost'him to

'work: on.another mthig fon.

{)7HC)

En oroemcn't d1d not: WOrk directly wnh onthe mvestxgauon, although

BN festified he talked to her at the belinning OFIhE referral and would get regular

st fromcher.* 14, at 16. Accordmg q®X7HC) Enforcement “pretty much agtéed. wnh
od-further below. Jd. at 22. Asto the
mﬁed that Enforcement did not fook at that

St essment ofmevaluau 0" as di

e

Emhom, along mthEinhom scounsel atid co €ague, a5 well as Bnt:lnnan -on.Af

K o ! C) Jowing SEC staff were at that meeting with Emhom
Id at 100—101 Accordmg to Binhom, he found the SEC smff to

According ¢ Who mﬁedheglmnedqnsigbtsmtbﬂhedthrqughhls Teview
of their e-max'ls Alljed acted “kind of paranold” byha\cmg the;roﬁice sw;z;t for'bugs;
that Allied made al arrangements to deliver -

kS

| 'r:czgx;garkﬁocncnthndemmgv-”)(C) |
- Enforcement would ask for an-exaniitier to assist fiem and‘the]ﬂ;he axanitiet would 56
ifit fit into theu' schedule before dﬂtermlmng whether ‘to assist Enforcement. Id at 53

he teghed there veas no Md pmcuoe
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the one and only time he met with Einlorn, and he foun ,
at 11-12, After meeting with Einbom in Axril 2004, Enforcement’s first subpoenafor -
documents was to BLX. 7d. at 103 fesiified theyhad a lot of lefters from Eishors
about Allied, and thiat lieespecially “Telied.on one mors than others in frantiing what the
investigation would look like.” Jd. at I3, »

and he found Ejshorn 1o be.credible” ",

Y

(b)(5)
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B. Tlie Cl;mmissioli ’s Valuation Guidance

As disgussed above, the Commxssmn has not updated dance in the area of valuation '
of illiquid securities since 1970. Some-agency officials beh&ve thisisa thoneusb' gray ared”
and one that needs updating by the: Comnussxon. Exhibit:80; Sexdor Official Tr. at 83-84. The
reason for the need to update the guidance, acoordmg to the Senior Official in Invastment
Management, is that a 1ot has happened in the industry siiice 1970 and the mdusu‘y ‘may fot
believe thie SEC is standing behind guidarnce issued that long ago. Jd. at 89.

[OIG)

[B® 'The Senior Official, however, tesafied fhiat while
Would clanty is h:sareatosomeextent,hebehev'
®)©) F’ Senior Official Tr. at 103. -
(®)(5)

L, . The Issue of Whether Alhed Was a Pom Scheme, Because of How xt
Fmanced its Dividends, Was Not Lnvestigated. "

Asdlscussedabove,despxtebemgreferred&omOCIEasamatter«'.'" red fixrthe;
woik, Enforcemeiit did not investigate the Ponzi-like schemé dividend issue. Tr. at
‘54&Exhibit8f6 Aopqrdmg ‘xtwasarwoum;ssuee -

Lo ‘We pomwd out o the Senior Official that it appeaxed that mostof the Enforcement .
investigations related to fair valuc had settled; but he stated he was not sure the number
settled wis so great relative to other areas of wrotigdoing. Id. at 104; see also Exhibit 9.
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. . [®XE)
DI,

stiffed ape; that: 1 didn™ havéthcexpenence,l’d
vetoreyontheamumant. 1" estified th ‘eﬁrstaccountantassxgned
to the investigation, had the expertise fo look at thexssue Id He wasn’t sure, however, "
‘whetherthe other accounitints assigned to the. mvesngatwn were capable of making
determmatxen on that i issue. Id. .

testified he did not try 10 secreats the-
analysisT - issue. Jd.at 3 asmiot sure whether the USAO
iooked at the-issue of Allied’s dividends. Jd: at 55, B ; oted that the dividend issue
was tied to the issue of valuation because it appeared Allied fimec ‘thenrsalectnshowthembest
. finances. Jd, at24. Similarly, fhe Senior Official in lavestment Management testified the:
dividend Issue was.interrelated 16 iie valnation issues, Senfor Official Tr. 4t 99.

testified he did not neeessanly agree Allied was 4 Ponzi-like scheme: he thotght Allied took
miuch riskiet positions in later years. andthat the BDC busmcss model made it mherenﬂy risky.
Id. at 51-33.. o o

: gy the B ' Af?gmmﬁsm
mmemberthe dividend issiie bemg someﬁnng thatwas discussed, but if you're asking me

- whether that’s [sic] the:fAction] meme, obviously it"s-not, but T don’t fecall exattly what was

. done to look i into the dividend issue. and when that was niot the: focus anymore” Id. at 25-26.

"Fhe Senior Official testified the he recalled the primary focus of the OCIE exaniination
of Allied was their valuation, but that there was an issue of Allied not generating enough
revenue for companies to maintain their dividend payment. Senior Official Tr; at 77. The
" Senior Official did not recall how he learned about the dividend issue, but said there were -

_ several issues associated with it. 7. at 78-79. Those.issues included representahons in Allied’s
, reglsttanonstatement,swhentheymsedmoneyﬂ'ommwestorsaboutwhattheyf“, d 10 use
the proceeds forand if Allied smid they were Taising mongy to itivestmore when they were

. seallydoing somefhing else, 14, Aceordii to the Sedior Official, one concérm wa that they

were:doing the offering to pay the dividend when their i mvestments ‘were Hot generaung enough
_ revenueto maintain the dividend. E 4 at79. E

‘ .D'; Enforcement Agreed to Settle with Alhed with No l’enalty or Action. Agamst
Allied Officers
I June 2007 the Commission entered intoa settlement with Allied: The settlement |
resulted in Allied agreeing to continue.to employ: (1) a Chief Valuation ‘Officer (“CVO™) t0
oversee ifs quarterly valuation process; and (2) third-party valuatxon eonsultants to assist i 1ts
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quarterly vaiuatmn rocess for private ﬁ,nance mvesnncnis in a manner cons:stent with. Adlied’s
current practices.” Extiibit 84, Allicdwas required under the settlement order o undertakee this
Tor two years. Jd: In:addition, Allied: agreed fo ceas¢-and desist from commxttmg violations of
the sections of the Exehange Actof 1934 which requité public cotpanies fo miintain ascurate

financial controls-and books and records. # There was no peiialty: agamst Allied ot was any ,

acﬁontakenagamstanoﬁioerordubctor L
L Allied’s ngh-l’owcred Counsel Requested and Obtamed Meetmg -

with Enforcement to Argue for Setﬂement

Accordmg BI7E) WilmerHale 1
dxscuss the Allied i mVesnganom ‘Exhibit §8 &
e call f1cst | iseing: igisand W

) »tﬁber 25; 2006, Enforcement met with
Tr. at 35, Thls meetmg was attendedb

(b)(7)(C)

® We siote that the Enforcemeiit Manial does not reference’ pre~Wells” mieetings, only

: ‘Wells meetings. Exhibit 87. Morcover, the Enforceiment Manual states, “A Wells-notice
shoiild be.in writing when possible: Ifa Wells notice is given orally, it should be
“promptly followed by ‘written.confirmation.” Id. It appears no Wrﬂten nouce ‘was given

hey (bm(

to Allied.
¥ When " |wasasked if there were Wells meefings in the Allied investigation(l” |
. . tzs ﬁﬁw’ - . : .

‘Imnnotdmdethxsupand:ﬁgme:toutanymore. I
.can’trecall.- Thereweresetdementmeeﬁngsand

theré wére Wells micetinigs. There weie nice
aboutproducnonbfdocumenw abostofméetings - -
mtheeomsenfthe mvasugatxm Toan’t separate- '

% The “Wells submission” process repments a cmucal phase in Enforcement

. investigations. Pursuant to the Securities Act Release No. 5310, Procedures Relating to
the Commencement.of Enforcement Promdmgs and Terminstion of Stafﬂnvmugauons
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|(b)(7)(C) Emi(b)m(m -

’ l(b)(7)(C)

and another parimer from WilmerHale

*

s*“heavily, heavily armed. '”m.ax&
noted thiat he “gets brought down from on high for
. ook the lead for Enfoicement
to :theleadforAlliedi"'»metpung. Id.at43 Atthatmeetmg,

utlmed theﬁ'aud charges and sald, “

: The OIG obtained a copy of the presentation Alhed’s counsel gave to Enforcenient it
resulied ity the settlement. Exiibit 90. Diring that presentation, counsel For Allied made three
'principal arguments: (1) Allied had riot overvalued its portfolio; {2) it had accurately disclosed. -
its valuation process; and (3) based on SEC precedent, Allied’s valuatton practice did not justify
an Enforcement acuon d

: 7)C ) '
"2 ®xe) , dl(b)m(c) Decided Not to- Bnng Fraud Charges
Shortly After Meeting with All ed’s Counsel ’ _

According t§77®  lwho we found to be credible; shorﬂyaﬁerthe“pm—Weﬂs”
‘mecting with Allied representatives, he was told 4ll possible iz : Allied wer
 going to be dropped.|OP© |1y, at 61 i

. _ B | B0 L
-Aboutaw,eekior sowent»by, an4 and M e
to me, and indicated they thiought that based up6n Wilkiner s '

- presentation, that they were going to remove. the fraud charge

(September 27, 1972), at the.canclusion of an Enforcemem mvesﬁgahon whexe staffhas:

decxdedto seck authority from:the Commission to brmgapubha administeative, :

_ ding or civil injunictive setion apainst an individual: orentmy, Eiiforceitient staff E
may. adwsc prospective defendantsof the: pmposeﬂ chacges.against them and ptovxde
‘them the opportunity to file a written statement “setting forth their interests and position”

. in aceordance:with Rule 5(c) of the Commiission’s Rules on Inforinal and Other
Procedirres, 17 C.F.R. § 202.5(c). Prospective defendants use these responding
statements - known by the SEC and the securities bar as"“Wells submissions” - as an
opportunity to set forth the reasons why the.staff should riot pursue such action before the
Commission: bnngs formal chargm. :
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~ from. cons;dera‘tmn, and did T have 3 px:oblem wrhthat, they asked

© . ‘ : S |
@0 on the other hand, olaimed that ogettier made hie ,
ision N to bring a fraud chatge against Allied .,(b)(?) 5ld the OIG that

i wdedmputmtothedecxswntodm}),_. - When askisd

it was decided that Enforcement: would not pursye ﬁaud nhavgea agamst Aﬂl

testified:.

Aftewonsxdenngall of the facts of the case and the arguments.
- that counsel made and all of the facts and citcnmistanoes including
. litigation risks. The company provided us with a setilemient offer
that we thonght encompassed what was a feasonable settlement iri
ﬂusmaﬁerandtbatwastheendofxt. o
Id

: When asked, “If there i thats week after i ese pre-Wells meetings with
Allied’s counsel. that you an Beno pold © @ that frand: chiarges were hot
gong: to be bmught, does thafsound mong OX7C) Treplied, “1 don’t remiember.” Jd. at36.

R 3 'd it was fair to say: th {00 (l(b)m(c) lwere llkely swayed. by
ntation. Jd at 64. Moreover,, headdedthat he did not krow 1f theY were:
'thefomtoﬁveotherlawﬁrm"." y the ro 4 In reviewing

L ‘Ihlse-mmlsmngwasdated()ctober3l 2006 thesameumepenodm '

jang oﬂmerparhxersatWﬂmerHalepresentedﬂleuargmnentﬂmtAﬂmdshould

Feha esbmmuldaoceptabooksandmrdscharge. See Exhibit 90. Inihat
.ashnm.ﬂwgueforacopyofﬂw:elevantmmhﬂmo, o

-

®DC)

And it doesn’t look like theié’s a tecammendéhonas to. the
company, Originally the company had offered to pay s . LT
subsmnual penalty Wonderwhat happened witht that. o

replied, . - _
Lactually heard this was 2
offer and simiiltaneously wad
a penalty-was inappropriate.

(BX7NC)

ed tosubmxtsomeﬂnngsaymgthat
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responded, "l BNC) L
. Good peclalsl Gom_.love.the_m. s
Exhibit 91 )

thlethsrexs noewdenoehere&atAlhedmdtopaya penalty, a very similar thing S i

: happenedhereatmesamenme-- ‘WilmerHale partners, including®©)  |offered to have "
. Allied submit to a booke.esd saserds chaige Wihile simultaneously stating-that a fraud charge

" was inappropriate. See Tr. at 39-40- & 9. -

- eoe ’told the:OIG he dxd at. havea problem with that decision, but that he did -

feel if were wasmot going to be; rge they at least needed to send amessage to the .
BDC eommumty Id at62. To that me¢ssage was sent, by outlining with specﬂiclty
Enforcemcnt’sﬁndmgsastothe esser books and records chargs. Jd. at-62 & 67: -

POe Lu ged that the driving factor it dropping the fraud chirge was the,

.[ljack of evxdence, lmgauon nsk, a determmatmnxs o whcther
this merited the significant resourees it would reguire to continue .
in this investigation tp-investigate-the valuations of the other.
- . approximaiely 100 iavestments Allied had wiade that we hiad.not
h - delved fito, engaging ini 4 battle of experis:overvaluations arid a
' .. provess that had beens1gmﬁcanﬂychanged by Allied ini the
. meantime. , _
d at’ 36-37.

OO Claimed there was 1o other way to establish materiality and intent for a fraud
«charge than-to look more closely 4t all of Allied’s investmerits, niot just the couple: dozen,
Enforcement found to-be overvalued, Id at 37-38, E@stated, “If you want to establish '
: i ility, a: pattem, infent, youcenamly would haveto g0 beyondwherewewmableto £0. i

Id. at38. - '

(&X7XC)

' psnﬁedﬂzat if Allied only held thﬂsu{tcen mv%tments ‘Eiiforcement found
. 10: besubstantxally overvalued, Enforcement would have broughtacasemattheywerc '

4

e OIG. has prevxously mvesugated whether fom Division. Dxreetors,
! , and inflileries on, Enforceiment i mvestngatwns.
epiember 30 2008 Report of Invesnganom ‘CaseNo, OIG431, . -
Remmhgatlon of Claims by Gary Aguiire of Preferential Freatment.and Improper
Termination; see also Séptenibet 30, 2009 Repott of Divestigation: ' Case No. OIG-502,
Allegahons of Impro,per stclosum and Assurances Given.- :
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(b)(7)(C)

Tr. ot 5. ’Bat’h‘

e, BT OF

(b)(7)(c e

EXNC) }‘nd(b)ﬂ)(c) % tesfified that 4

Shjcl wonld have fielped their case.

'3-. The Terms.ofthesmlementorder‘

told the OIG that-Allied afgued
fivestments to shivw fraud and thiat e

R CE)

feathers.” Einhom booksit 316. He alss believed thicie Wag a “gaping disconnect” betwesn- the

L Emhbm wrote aboat his view of the SEC seftlement w;th Allied saying; “'Ihe -
consequence of Allied’s illegal uction wis the lightest tap on the wiist with the sofiest of

findings end thié order. J4 Binhorn’s counsel tld the OIG about his frustration with the .
settlemient testifying, “It was like all this happened but rio one was responsible for it.” Einhom
Tr.at 109. Einhora’s counsel said it-was “quite unusual to me that those forders] were
potentially niot extracting any real penalty at-all in-any way from anybody.” Id at 111.
Einhorn’s counsel also complained there was no reference to BLX* orto the pretexting. Jd at
109. According to. Einhor, the-philosophy at the SEC at the time was not to do any harm to

' sharehtﬂde:'s,andthatthebehefwasafyoupi““

Idaulz.

42 .

RS

t the mmpany you puriish the sharchalders.

As noted above, Eirthorn's letters to the SEC often refirenced problems with BLX, -

. Allied’s largest investinent. Einhornalso discussed BLX at length thiroughiout his ook,

including indicating that there were convictions against at least one: BLX official. See, -
e.g., Einhorn’s book at 331-350," In the January 2008 letter to the:SEC, Einhorn nofed

* that the probleins with BLX were finally-comifig'to light and wiote, “We have said for

years thiat this Ailied-run entity has. engaged in asystematlc ﬁ"auddlrectedat the {SBA].”

Exlnbxt 34.
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. The Senior Ofﬁcml testzﬁed that Investment Management had input into-and
commented on the séttlement order befote it was finalized. Senior Official Tr. at 105. -
According to the Semo; Ofﬁcxal, “We were. fess than enthused: when the net mcult was less the

' 109 Invesnnent Mahagement dfd OBt o Allied }y iavin
1 / A at 107

thmks
OO

&6 ltoiheDu’ector oflnmnnent Management, told the oiG he
rcementwanwdtob : ase: 1at-thev w A '

sorf of useless,” | 0)("C) [k

réddedthatEﬁfor 'wa'sdenl'tabadf hind bega useof ﬂiepressmAllxedeanexm$ven
. theirpolitical connecnons as well as:the Cemmxssmn atthat | tune being *very handsh-oﬂ" » M at -
- 4445, - .

: E. ThefS:ett'l'exil‘ent‘Agreen_lfent Had Deficiencies

)G
1.

As noted above one of the only two elements eontamed inthe. setﬂement order with

A!hed waz ®)5)

(®)() -

(b)(5) Exm‘bltss‘ Inaddiho (b)7XC) ﬂzatin
so—callbd“pre—Wells”meeuhg,Enfomentpm;ted d’s:counsel’ anid ‘was a

JONO)

~1®)E)

o be removed andh replaced, Id, at35. . .
L it was to have a third patty consltant
seemed to be smater thh 0thers’ mkunenfs than
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; : mft‘ib"? ha the was; but: (b)m remernbérsd 1.he
a3 seem 10 recall that £ ey had found thsit
nents held by All ed,but_clmm lmder the. agreemen

o nly have 6nc ml':

Nimber one, I don’trecall that. Number ‘two, T'don’t believe that

ifwe liad had evidenice thal®) hiad d intentionally overvalued thist -

we wouild have brought that case. Idon’t want:you to betoo -

much i mto the memo that yon have there, We: clearly didat

_dtherewasapeasonforthat Because we didn’t

. haveany evidence to prove thal commltted anyseamues
.laws violations. ’ :

b3 at35

- The-Senior Official testified that he teca]led Enforcement found ote person Was faore
problematic: thii others related to Allied”s-valuatioit of its irivestrients. Senior Official Tt. at
98. Headded, “We thought there'was an adequate basis for at least seriously consxdenng

< pe X 1y or anybody else with anti-fraud. violatiens.” T, at 98-
99. The Semor c1a1 t&hﬁed that the name ' sounded familiar and was likely
that person. Id. at 98. . S ' -

2. . Failureto *Monitar'COmplihnce with Set‘tlemen‘t Agmeem’.eliﬁ

' There were no provisions i the settlement agreement thh Alhed for ensunng their -
" compliance with its-tetms, Exhibit 92. Moreover, Enforcemesiat did figt monitor A ied ;
" eompliance with the agreement.r. at 127-129. ;‘? by . Siit
there are nio provisions regarding minitoring of setilements-in the-Enforcement Manual, whxch
is infended to'be a refereiice for Enforcemment staff in ihe mv&tlgathon of potennal federal
. secuumlawvmlaﬂons T . - ‘

es "ﬂed he likely xecelved a Jamlaxy 28 20&8 l@tter ﬁ‘om Eitihorn: about

. at 1292, That letter

fie 1 oontmues o bea tt:o 1bked egmpanymtha managcment

iintiles of Alhed aconhnumg fo ovawalue its investments, inchuding that of
testified thatoihexthanlook at:some: finandials from Allied to seeif-

i =by Allied, e ‘dotﬂoanythmgﬁ:rﬁherthhthe
It at 122 & 127.




- take when theré-was a settlement. Id. He suggested that
- furthér noted that Enforcement could have asked Al.hcd for reports on'a quarterly bas

~

This documeiit is sn,lbject to the provisions of the Piivacy Act o 1974, and siay réquire redaeﬁbn Before
disclosure to-third parties. No redaction has'been perforimed.by the Office of T ' General. Reclpients
oftlus report should not disséiminate 6" copy it without:the Ilispwtor General'y ﬁp‘pm#al.,

b) 7 C
txﬁed +that he-did not knowhow the process of monitoring a seftlerent
agreement worked. Jd.at 127. ked fsomeone ‘was monitoring Allied to: be sure itway:
doing what they had agreed.to do B0
OIG he did not kniow of any spécitic Enforeement Martial: pdlky that mdxcatcd what steps fo

outline what steps shonld be taken in any instance of undértakmgs [valuation]. Ja

the agreement. Id. at 129. .
\ H - .

DOC " \did not recall receiving thit Einhorn leﬂcr ¥, gt 43

momtonng whether Allied complied with the setflement agreem 1§ OO festi
is'no provision in fthe settlement order] for g momt'onng. Id. at 4& ;!

There is typxcally not language in szttlements that prowdes the .
details that you are, I think, asking, no. Thére are independent:
consultants or monitors that are put in place in cases where we
believe that’s necessary and it is their job to:monitar the-conduct
- and pethaps recommend certain changes, But that’s not what-was
. put here, what- wasxeqmmd hete, forthesewement. And thatis
-fiot common. .

- Ifyou’re asking i 1f i's comimon for us to have ianguage inour
settlement docurents in which the Commission undertakes to-
exarnine a company to determine whether it is doing what it said
it was going to do, itis not typical for our settlements. In fact. _
don’t believe they ever do say that the Commission will be
conducting regular examinations to look at that.

Hd.at41, ' _

testified, “That’s-a fair gisstion.” 1d; Heloldthe "~

®)E)

4 Recently Allied atinounced that it is being acqun‘ed byanothet BBC AmCapngaJ

‘Corporation and that 3 merger is currently taking place. See -
http:/iwww. busmesswue «com (October 28, 2009) ’
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This document is subiject to thepro‘usions of the Privacy Act oHSVM, aind may- requu'c redaction before
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(b))

Conclusi 'gn o

- In all, the OlG’s ﬁndmgs dunng this investigation raise concerns about how decxsxons
were.made within the SEC with tegard to the initiating and concluding of the examination and
investipatiois. While we did riot find atiy i evidetice of specific wrongdomg on the:part of

- .Acunent SEC employees, we found that serious and credible aileganons against Alhed were
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riat initially investigated, and inistead Allied was able to syccessfully lobby the SEC to Took
. into sllegations agaisist its rival Eirihorn without aiiy specific evidence of wrongdoing.

. 'Wealso found that there was 4 lack of communication between OCIE anid R
Enforcernent with respect to pending exaniinations and investigations. Moreovei, a:former
Enforcement manager (who had such'significant performance problems he was.asked to feave '

- Enforcement) was able-to obtain a significant amount of sensitive i 1ation he may havé .
disclosed'to Alfied when he became 4 registere or Allied a year after leaving the
- SEC. Further, we found concerns with both the OCIE examination of Allied and the resulting *
 Enforeetent investigation, and befieve thére are questions about the extent to which AHieds
SEC connections and aggtessive tagtics may liave inifluenced Foforcement’s and OCIEs
decisions in these miatters. : - - : . o :

S We arerecommendmgﬂlattheDueotors ofOClEandEnfomementcareﬁﬂlYtewew
this report of investigation and the history of the examination and investigations that are
-described in this report and give consideration to. promulgating and/or clarifying procedures
with regard to: s o - R -

{I) _howexarhinations and investigations are initiated whiete there aré requests
- from-outside persoiis or extities, including whether specific allegations.of
. wrongdoing have been piovided, in determining whetlier to: commeiics sin

examiiation or investigation;

@) sihforgﬁing individuals dnd entities under investigation thisit they are 1o l'cmgéfb
subjects of an investigation in a timely manner, as required by the Eriforcenmient
Manyal; _ R . T
- (3)  ensuring that other than traditional Wells meetings dre not ufilized by
aggressive courisel to influence decisions in Enforcement actions; .

| '@ incorporating provisions h:ﬁnfomeqtzgéﬁlemqitagieqménis that ensure
~ Tequirenients are adequately monitored for compliance; -

- (5)" limiting the ability of OCIE pessonnel to delete exdmination work papers from
OCIE computer systems; ’ : . :
. )  ensuring that OCIE masiagement is not unduly influenced by the presence of
: forriier SEC employées in examinations and that all issues idestified as
potential federal securities laws violations be carefully considered for referral -
to Enforcenient; and ' s ' :
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(75 dosumenting the reasons spesific issues refemred to Eaforcement from OCTE
are nptinvestigated: B O

In addition, we recommend thiat the Ethics Qffice consider methods to-ensure that there is tio
appearance of impropriety whete formet SEC $taff ittomeys représént a company shorily: '
after their woik at the SEC providéd them ‘with speeific and sensitive information related to . -
that company. This report is being provided to the Director of Enforcement, the Acting
Director of the Office of Compliance Inspections and Examinations, the Ethiics Counsel} and
the Deputy Chief of Staff, Office of the Chairmian. - A

Y Ado
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